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In the Name of Allah, the Most Gracious, the Most Merciful

2024 Annual Shari’ah Report of the Internal Shariah Supervision Committee (the “ISSC”) of
Takaful Emarat PJSC

All praise be to Allah, Lord of the worlds, and Prayer and Peace be upon the Prophet Muhammad, his
family, and the companions.

Issued on: 27 March 2025

To: Shareholders of the Company (the “Company”)

Assalamo Alaikum W R W B,

Pursuant to requirements stipulated in the relevant laws, regulations and standards (“the Regulatory
Requirements”), the Internal Shari’ah Supervision Committee of the Company (“ISSC”) presents to you
the ISSC’s Annual Report for the financial year ending on 31 December 2024 (“Financial Year”).

1. Responsibility of the ISSC

In accordance with the Regulatory Requirements and the ISSC’s charter, the ISSC’s responsibility is
stipulated as to:

a. Undertake Shari’ah supervision of all businesses, activities, products, services, contracts, documents
and business charters of the Company; and the Company’s policies, accounting standards, operations
and activities in general, memorandum of association, charter, financial statements, allocation of
expenditures and costs, and distribution of profits between participants’ accounts and Shareholders’
accounts (“Company’s Activities”) and issue Shari’ah resolutions in this regard, and

b. Determine Shari’ah parameters necessary for the Company’s Activities, and the Company’s compliance
with Islamic Shari’ah Provisions within the framework of the rules, principles, and standards set by the
Higher Shari’ah Authority (“HSA”) to ascertain compliance of the Company with Islamic Shari’ah
Provisions.

The senior management is responsible for compliance of the Company with Islamic Shari’ah Provisions in
accordance with the HSA’s resolutions, Fatawa, and opinions, and the ISSC’s resolutions within the
framework of the rules, principles, and standards set by the HSA (“Compliance with Islamic Shari’ah
Provisions”) in all Company’s Activities, and the Board bears the ultimate responsibility in this regard.

2. Shari'ah Standards
The ISSC shall comply with the Shari'ah standards issued and approved by the HSA.
3.Duties Fulfilled by the ISSC During the Financial Year 2024:

The ISSC conducted Shari’ah supervision of the Company’s Activities pursuant to the Regulatory
Requirements in this regard. The ISSC’s activities included the following:
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1%: Meetings of ISSC:

The Company has arranged three ISSC meetings during the financial year 2024. In addition, some
resolutions were also passed by the ISSC through circulation.

2"d: Fatwas, Resolutions & Opinions:

Issued fatwas, resolutions and opinions on matters presented to the ISSC in relation to the Company's
Activities.

3": Contracts & Agreements

Reviewed new contracts and agreements signed by the Company and other activities presented to the ISSC
in order to make the opinion on whether the Company is compliant with the Islamic Sharia provisions and
principles, the advisory opinions, resolutions and directives issued by the ISSC.

5': Shari’ah Operating Model of the Company:

The ISSC reviewed and approved the Shari’ah Operating Model of the Company.

6™: Financial Reports:

The ISSC has reviewed the Company's financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 to ensure
its compliance with the provisions of Islamic Shari’ah. The ISSC approved the Company's financial reports
after the necessary amendments.

7th: Zakat Calculation:

The ISSC reviewed the Zakat calculation for the period from 15 Jan 2024 to 315 Dec 2024 and amount of
Zakat per share of the Company. The ISSC approved the Zakat calculation methodology. The Zakat amount
per share is AED 0.008.

8": Company’s Agreements with Other Takaful Companies (Re-Takaful)

The Company entered into agreement with other Takaful companies for the purpose of “Re-Takaful”. In
some cases the Company also entered into agreements with conventional companies where ISSC guided
the Company on the requirements of AAOIFI standards.

9'": Internal Shari’ah Control Department and Internal Shari’ah Audit Department:

The Company's Shari’ah Controller and Shari’ah Auditor have not been appointed to date. The request for
NOC has been submitted to the CBUAE and HSA on appointment of Shari’ah Controller.
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10%": Communication with the BOD, Committees reporting to the BOD and the Senior Management

The ISSC met with the Board member and senior management during ISSC meetings in 2024. The Annual
ISSC report also shared with the Board and Senior Management.

4. Independence of the ISSC

The ISSC acknowledges that it has carried out all of its duties independently and with the support and
cooperation of the senior management and the Board of the Company. The ISSC received the required
assistance to access all documents and data, and to discuss all amendments and Shari'ah requirements
escalated to ISSC.

5. THE ISSC’S OPINION ON THE SHARI’AH COMPLIANCE STATUS OF THE COMPANY

Based on the information and explanations that were provided to the ISSC with the aim of ascertaining the
Company’s compliance with the Islamic Shari’ah, the ISSC has unanimously concluded with a reasonable
level of confidence that the Company’s Activities are in Compliance with the Islamic Shari’ah.

The ISSC formed its opinion, as outlined above, exclusively on the basis of information perused by the
ISSC during the financial year.

We ask Allah Almighty to grant everyone guidance and rectitude.

Wassalamo Alaikum W R W B
Internal Shari’ah Supervision Committee of Takaful Emarat
Shaikh Abdul Nasser Ahmed

Al-Mannaie
Chairman - ISSC
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Docusign Envelope ID: 389F58A9-848C-4D3C-87CC-4097B0698881

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Dear Shatreholders,

We are pleased to present the annual report for Takaful Emarat Insurance and its subsidiary for the year ending
31 December, 2024, This report highlights our key achievements and financial performance.

We would like to put on record our sincete appreciation and gratitude towards all stakeholders of Takaful Emarat
Insurance (PSC) for their strong confidence and trust in Takaful Emarat's management and strategic direction,
taising AED 185 million in additional capital. This strategic initiative has significantly strengthened the company's
financial position, increasing its total capital to AED 210.6 million.

Through a comprehensive assessment of our operations, we have identified and devised strategic measures to
enhance our operational efficiencies. This initiative led to a significant restructuring, optimized our resoutrces,
improved cost efficiencies, and sharpened our focus on core competencies.

Takaful revenue for the year ended 31 December 2024, has reached AED 420 million, compared to AED 229
million in the previous year. Net investment income for the year ended 31 December 2024, reached AED 32
million, up from AED 15.5 million last year. Net profit attributable to shareholders after tax for the year ended
December 31, 2024, has reached AED 11.2 million, compated to a net loss of AED 12.4 million in the previous

year.

As we look ahead to the coming year, the Board of Directors is committed to driving sustainable growth and
innovation across our organization. Our strategic plan focuses on expanding our market presence, enhancing
operational efficiencies, and investing in cutting-edge technologies to stay ahead of industry trends. We will also
prioritize strengthening our customer relationships and exploring new opportunities for collaboration and
partnerships. By fostering a culture of excellence and agility, we aim to deliver long-term value to our
shareholders and stakeholders, ensuring continued success and resilience in an ever-evolving business landscape.

We would like to formally express our heartfelt appreciation and gratitude to all stakeholders of Takaful Emarat
Insurance (PSC). Your unwavering support and trust have been instrumental in our success. Additionally, we
extend our deepest thanks to our management and staff for their sincere dedication and hard work, which have
significantly contributed to the Group's successful growth. Your commitment and efforts are truly valued and

recognized.

May God; the Almighty; guide our steps

E

FBEEG167507F484...

Mr. Nooraldeen Subhi Atatreh
Chairman
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Takaful Emarat - Insurance (PSC) and its subsidiary

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Takaful Emarat Insurance (P.8.C) (the “Company”)
and its subsidiary (the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2024, consolidated statement of profit and loss, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,

consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by International Accounting Standards

Board (IASB).
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our tesponsibilities
under those standards atre further desctibed in the Aunditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with Insernational Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Acconntants (including International Independence Standards)
(“IESBA Code"), together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to the audit of the consolidated financial
statements in United Arab Emirates, and we have fulfilled our other ethical requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current yeat. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of Takaful Emarat ~ Insurance (PSC) and its subsidiary
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key Audit Matter

liabilities

contract liabiliies, retakaful contract assets and
retakaful contract liabilities are valued at AED 665
million, AED 44 million and AED 5 million
respectively. Refer to note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The valuaton of retakaful contract liabilities,
retakaful contract assets and takaful contract
liabilities involves significant judgements and
estimates particularly with respect to, estimation of
the present value of future cash flows, the eligibility
of the premium allocation approach (PAA) model
and estimation of the liabilities fot incutred claims.

These cashflows and liabilities primarily include
determination of expected premium receipts,
expected ultimate cost of claims and allocation of
takaful acquisition cash flows which are within the
contract boundaties.

The calculation for these liabilities includes
significant estimation and involvement of actuarial
experts to ensure appropriateness of methodology,
assumptions and data used to determine the
estimated future cash flows and the
approptiateness of the discount rates used to
determine the present value of these cashflows.

As a result of all the above factors, we consider
valuation of takaful contract liabilities retakaful
contract assets and retakaful contract liabilities, as a
key audit matter.

Valuation of talkaftl contract liabilities, retakaful Contract Assets and retakatul contract

As at 31 December 2024, The Group’s takaful

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We petformed the following procedures in
conjunction with our actuarial specialists:

® Understood and evaluated the process, the
design and implementation of controls in place
to determine wvaluation of takaful contract
liabilities, retakaful contract assets and
retakaful contract liabilities;

e Assessed the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the management appointed

actuary;

® Tested the completeness, and on sample basis,
the accuracy and relevance of data used to
determine future cashflows;

® Evaluated the appropriateness of the
methodology, significant  assumptions
including risk adjustment, PAA eligibility
assessment, discount rates and expenses
included within the fulfilment cashflows. This
included consideration of the reasonableness
of assumptions against actual historical
experience and the apptopriateness of any
judgments applied;

® We independently repetformed the calculation
to assess the mathematical accuracy of the
retakaful contract liabilities, retakaful contract
assets and retakaful contract assets on selected
classes of business, particularly focusing on
latgest and most uncertain resetves;

¢ Evaluated and tested the data used in the
impairment model calculations for takaful
receivables; and

® Evaluated and tested the calculation of the
expected credit loss allowance and the key
assumption and judgements used.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of Takaful Emarat - Insurance (PSC) and its subsidiary
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key Audit Matter
[WViluation of investment propesties
The Group holds investment properties under the
fair value model as at 31 December 2024
amounting to AED 108 million (2023: AED 84
million. (Refer to note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements).

The fair value requires significant judgement and
estimates by management and independent valuets.
The Group has involved two external valuers in
otrdet to value their investments properties for the
purpose of determining the fair value for inclusion
in the consolidated financial statements for the
property’s value more than AED 30 million.

The existence of significant judgement and
estimation could tesult in material change.
Therefore, the valuation of these investment
properties were significant to our audit.

| How our audi addressed e ke aut mattet

Our audit procedures, among others, included:
® Obtained from the management the fair
valuation report performed by external valuets.

e Evaluated the qualifications, competence and
objectivity of the external valuers.

® Evaluated the accuracy and completeness of
the source data used in the calculation of fair
values;

® Assessed the appropriateness of the key
assumptions and methodologies used.

® Performed an independent calculation after
carrying out enquities with management and
independent valuer, including performing
reasonableness computation by using publicly

available sources of information to
independently corroborate the valuation
performed by management expetts;

® Verified the accuracy of the disposals during
the year,

® Assessed the adequacy of disclosures included
in consolidated financial statements against the
requirements of IFRSs.

Other Information

The Board of Directors and management is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board of Directors’ report but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and accordingly we
do not express any form of assutance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that are obtained prior
to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that thete is 2 material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Takaful Emarat - Insurance (PSC) and its subsidiary

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and their preparation in compliance with the
applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Decree Law No. 32 of 2021, UAE Fedetal Dectee Law No 48 of 2023
regarding the regulation of insurance activities and Central Bank of the UAE Boatd of Director’s Decision No.
(25) of 2014 pertinent to the Financial Regulations for Insurance Companies, and for such intetnal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that ate free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud ot error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance ate responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting ptrocess.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives ate to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s repott that includes
out opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud ot etror and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

®  Identify and assess the tisks of material misstaternent of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud ot etror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those tisks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and approptiate to provide a basis for our opinion. The tsk of not detecting a matetial misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from etrot, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control televant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

®  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

®  Conclude on the approprateness of management’s use of the going concem basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Out conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation,
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Takaful Emarat - Insurance (PSC) and its subsidiary

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

®  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the audit work performed for putposes of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with govemance tegarding, among other mattets, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
teasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those chatged with governance, we determine those matters that wete of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s repott unless law or regulation precludes public disclosute about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that 2 matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the UAE Federal Decree Law No. 32 of 2021, we report that:

)  We have obtained all the information and explanations we considered necessary for the purposes of our
audit;

ii) The consolidated financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all materal respects, with the
applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Decree Law No. 32 of 2021;

iif) The Group has maintained proper books of account in accordance with established accounting principles;

iv) The financial information included in Board of Directors’ report is consistent with the books of accounts
of the Group;

v) As disclosed in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group has purchased and invested in
securities during the year ended 31 Decembet 2024;

vi) Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements discloses materal telated party transactions, and the tetms
under which they were conducted;

vii) Based on the information that has been made available to us, nothing has come to our attention which
causes us to believe that the Group has contravened during the financial year ended 31 December 2024 any

of the applicable provisions of the Federal Dectee Law No. 32 of 2021, or in respect of the Group, its
Articles of Association which would materially affect its activities ot its financial position as at 31 December

2024 and;

viif) The Group has not made any social conttibutions during the yeat.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Takaful Emarat - Insurance (PSC) and its subsidiary

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requitements (continued)

Further, as required by the UAE Federal Dectee Law No. 48 of 2023, we teport that we have obtained all the
information and explanation we considered necessary for the purpose of our audit.

{3 p.o.Box: 1620 2
~ DUBAIU.AE.

Farouk Mohamed

Registration No: 86 Yo R
AccoV s’
Dubai, United Arab EmitatM"

2B HAR 2025




Takaful Emarat - Insurance (PSC) and its subsidiary
Consolidated statement of financial position

As at 31 December 2024
Notes 2024 2023
AED’000 AED’000
Assets
Participants’ assets
Investment propetties 6 107,915 83,084
Investment at fair value through profit ot loss (“FVTIPL”) 7 389,824 343,196
Investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”) 7 8,400 -
Retakaful contract assets 8 44,240 33,700
Other receivables 9 5,475 5,648
Due from shareholders - 106,471
Cash and bank balances 11 223,101 50,791
Total participants’ assets 778,955 623,790
Shareholders’ assets
Property and equipment 5 1,210 715
Intangible assets 257 490
Investment at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) 7 4,829 4,829
Other receivables 9 6,499 4,800
Statutory deposit 10 4,000 4,000
Due from participants 60,603 -
Cash and bank balances 11 103,491 25,450
Total shareholders’ assets 180,889 40,284
Total assets 959,844 664,074

‘The notes from 1 to 31 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Takaful Emarat - Insurance (PSC) and its subsidiary
Consolidated statement of financial position (continued)
As at 31 December 2024

Notes 2024 2023
AED’000 AED’000

Participants' liabilities

Takaful contract liabilides 8 665,526 536,243
Retakaful contract liabilities 8 5,133 3,453
Other payables 15 13,566 18,370
Due to shareholders = =
Total participants' liabilities 684,225 558,066
Deficit in participants funds and Qard Hassan from

shareholders
Deficit in participants funds 16 (34,127) (65,724)
Qard Hassan from shareholders 16 34,127 65,724
Deficit in pasticipants funds and Qard Hassan from

shareholders ~ -
Total participants® liabilities and deficit 684,225 558,066

Shareholders’ liability and equity
Shareholdess’ liabilities

Employees’ end of service benefits 3,295 3,636
Other payables 15 46,520 35,553
Deferred tax liability 1,996 -
Due to participants 60,603 106,471
Total shareholders® liabilities 112,414 145,660
Shareholders’ equity

Share capital 12 210,652 150,000
Statutory reserve 13 1,116 6,568
Retakaful reserve 13 3,248 1,966
Cumulative changes in fair value of FVTOCI investments (8,522) (16,922)
Accumulated losses (43,289) (181,264)
Total shareholders’ equity/(deficit) 163,205 39,652)
Total shareholders’ equity and liabilities 275,619 106,008
Total liabilities, participants’ fund and equity 959,844 664,074

This consolidated financial statement was authorised forissueon 7 §f MAR 2075 by the Board of Directors

and signed on their behalf by:

s‘%“m by: [Docusmned by:
% ﬁa/ascmaomm
Mr. Nooraldeen Subhi Atatreh Mr. Adnan Sabaalaish
Chairman Chief Executive Officer

The notes from 1 to 31 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Takaful Emarat - Insurance (PSC) and its subsidiary

Consolidated statement of profit and loss
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Attributable to participants

Takaful revenue

Takaful service expense

(Expenses)/income from retakaful contracts held
Takaful service result

Takaful finance expenses

Retakaful finance income

Net change in fair value of participants’ investment
Net takaful income

Investment income, net
Wakala fees
Surplus for the year attributable to participants

Attributable to shareholders

Investment income/ (loss) - net

Other income

Wakala fees

Policy acquisition cost

General and administrative expenses

Loss for the year before Qard Hassan

Reversal of provision against Qard Hassan to
participants

Profit/ (loss) before tax attributable to shateholders

Income tax expense

Profit/ (loss) after tax attributable to shareholders

Earnings/(loss) per share
Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share

Notes

17
8

19
19

20

16

25

2024 2023
AED’000 AED000
420,288 228,705
(310,278) (176,270)
(9,036) 2,946
100,974 55,381
(587) (57,848)
189 1,342

598 56,078
101,174 54,953
30,621 16,754
(100,198) (43,915)
31,597 27,792
1,432 (1,190)

725 236
100,198 43,915
(59,269) (34,945)
(61,525) (48,234)
(18,439) (40,218)
31,597 27,792
13,158 (12,426)
(1,996) 2
11,162 (12,426)
Restated

0.053 (0.059)
0.053 (0.059)

The notes from 1 to 31 form an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.
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Takaful Emarat - Insurance (PSC) and its subsidiary
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Profit/ (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income

Iterns that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Net change in fair value of equity instruments designated at FVTOCI
attributable to participants

Total other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year

2024 2023
AED’000 AED’000
11,162 (12,426)
8,400 -
8,400 :
19,562 (12,426)

The notes from 1 to 31 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Takaful Emarat - Insurance (PSC) and its subsidiary

Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit/(loss) for the year before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation

Untealised gain on investments cartied at FVTPL
Realised gain on sale of investment ptoperties
Provision for expected credit loss

Provision for employees’ end of service benefits
Change in fair value of investment properties
Operating cash flows before changes in working capital

Changes in working capital:

Changes in takaful contract assets

Changes in retakaful contract assets

Change in other receivables

Changes in takaful contract liabilities

Changes in retakaful contract liabilities

Change in other payables

Cash generated from operating activities
Employees end of service indemnity paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Change in deposits with matutity of mote than three months

Net purchase of investments at FVTPL

Purchase of property and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Addition to investments properties

Sale of investment properties

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Zakat paid

Repayment of ijarah financing
Proceeds from issuance of share capital

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Notes

12

11

2024 2023
AED’000 AED’000
13,158 (12,426)
671 853
(12,198) (55,206)
(614) ;
198 20

930 488
(13,189) (15,441)
(11,044) (81,712)
: 131
(10,540) (22,125)
(1,526) 11,279
129,283 130,028
1,680 (10,442)
6,163 1,918
114,016 29,077
(1,271) (1,069)
112,745 28,008
(35,000) 27,532
(34,430) (27,161)
(794) (171)

1 ;

(140) .
(13,087) (10,838)
2,959 s
(80,491) (10,638)
(1,705) ’
- (17,500)
185,000 :
183,295 (17,500)
215,549 (130)
62,701 62,831
278,250 62,701

The notes from 1 to 31 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Takaful Emarat - Insurance (PSC) and its subsidiary
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

1 Legal status and activities

Takaful Emarat - Insurance (PSC) and its subsidiary, Dubai, United Arab Emirates (the “Group”) is a public
stock company incorporated in the Emirate of Dubai — United Arab Emirates, subject to the regulations
of the UAE Federal Law No. 32 of 2021 and the UAE Federal Dectee Law No. 48 of 2023, concerning
Financial Regulations of Insurance Companies issued by the Central Bank of United Arab Emirates and
regulation of its operations.

The Group catries out takaful activities in Health, Life and Credit and Saving lines of business in accordance
with the Islamic Shatia’a and within the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Group.

The registered address of the Group is P.O. Box 57589, Dubai, United Arab Emirates.

This consolidated financial statement has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
applicable laws and regulations, including UAE Federal Dectee Law No. 32 of 2021.

This consolidated financial statement incorporates the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiary (collectively referred to as the “Group”).

Principal Country of
Subsidiary activity incorporation Ownership
Directly owned 2024 2023
Modetn Tech Investment Investment United Arab Emirates 100% 100%
2 Application of new and revised international financial reporting standards (“IFRS”)

The following relevant standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards were issued by the
IASB:

Standard number Title Effective date
Amendment to IAS 1 —Non-cuttrent liabilides with covenants and

LS classification of liabilities as current or non-cutrent 1 Jrasty 2024

Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and IFRS 7

IAS7 & IFRS 17  Financial  Instruments:  Disclosures—Supplier ~ Finance 1 January 2024
Arrangements

IFRS 16 Amendment to IFRS 16 — Leases on sale and leaseback 1 January 2024

These standards did not have a material impact on these consolidated financial statements.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The impact of the new standatds, interpretations and amendments that are issued, but not yet effective, up
to the date of issuance of the Group’s consolidated financial statements are disclosed below. The Group
intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

Standard number Title Effective date
Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of exchangeability Sale or
IAS 21 Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or 1 January 2025

Joint Venture
Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and IFRS 7
IFRS9 & IFRS 7  Financial Insttuments: Disclosures regarding the classification 1 January 2026
and measurement of financial instruments
IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosute in Financial Statements 1 January 2027
IFRS 19 Subsidiaties without Public Accountability: Disclosures 1 January 2027
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Takaful Emarat - Insurance (PSC) and its subsidiary
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

3 Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance with IFRS

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) promulgated by International Accounting Standards Board (LASB) and intetpretations thereof
issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretation Committee (IFRS IC) and in compliance with the
applicable requirements of U.AE Federal Law No. 32 of 2021, relating to commercial companies, and of UAE
Federal Law No. 48 of 2023 (previously UAE Federal Law No.6 of 2007), concerning Financial Regulations of
Insurance Companies issued by the Central Bank of United Arab Emirates and regulation of its operations. These
consolidated finandal statements are prepared in UAE Dithams (“AED”) being the economic, functional and
reporting currency, rounded to the nearest thousand.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statement has been prepated on the historical cost basis except for the following
which are measured at fair value:

i.  Financial assets at fair value through other comptehensive income (“FVTOCI”);
ii.  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”); and
iii.  Investment properties.

'The Group’s consolidated statement of financial position is not presented using a current/non-cutrent
classification. However, the following balances would generally be classified as current: Cash and cash
equivalents, Takaful and other receivables and Takaful and other payables. The following balances would
generally be classified as non-cutrent: property and equipment and statutory deposit. The following
balances are of mixed nature (including both cutrent and non-current portions): financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income, retakaful contract assets, takaful contract liabilities, bank balances
and fixed deposits and provision for employees’ end of service indemnity.

Functional and presentation cutrency

The consolidated financial statement is presented in U.A.E. Dithams (“AED”) rounded to the nearest
thousand, since that is the curtency in which the majority of the Group’s transactions are denominated.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of consolidated financial statement is in conformity with IFRS requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expense. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and undetlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the petiod in which the estimate is revised and in any future petiod affected. In preparing
this consolidated financial statement, the significant judgments made by management in applying the
Group’s accounting policies and estimation of key soutces of uncertainty were the same as those that
applied to the audited annual consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December
2023 except as desctibed in note 4 to this consolidated financial statement.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statement comptises the financial statements of the Group and its investees that
are considered subsidiaty as at 31 December 2024. Subsidiary is investees that the Group has control over.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

The financial information of a subsidiaty is included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. The Group maintains control over the
subsidiaries as it has power over the investee, exposure or rights to its variable returns and the power to
affect the investor’s returns.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiary is attributed to the
owners of the Group and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.
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Takaful Emarat - Insurance (PSC) and its subsidiary
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

3 Basis of preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

Allintra group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transaction between
members of the Group are eliminated in full consolidation.

4 Material accounting policies

IFRS 17 Takaful contracts

IFRS 17 establishes principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure of takaful
contracts, retakaful contracts and investment contracts with discretionary patticipation features. It introduces
a model that measures groups of contracts based on the Company’s estimates of the present value of future
cash flows that are expected to atise as the Company fulfils the contracts, an explicit risk adjustment for non-
financial risk and a contractual service margin.

Under IFRS 17, takaful revenue in each reporting petiod represents the changes in the liabilities for remaining
coverage that relate to services for which the Company expects to receive consideration and an allocation of
conttibutions that relate to recovering takaful acquisition cash flows. In addition, investment components
are no longer included in takaful revenue and takaful service expenses.

The Company applies PAA to simplify the measurement of contracts in the non-life takaful segment. When
measuring liabilities for remaining coverage, PAA is similar to the Company’s previous accounting
treatment. However, when measuring liabilities for incutred claims, the Company now discounts the fututre
cash flows and includes an explicit risk adjustment for non-financial risk.

Classification and measurement

The Group uses different measurement approaches, depending on the type of contracts, as follows:

Nature of Contracts Product classification = Measurement model

Unit Linfked Takafu! contracts Variable Fee Approach

Term Life Takafu! contracts General Measirement Model

Gronp Life Takaful contracts Premium Allocation Approach

Gronp Medical Takaful contracts Premium Allocation Approach

Individual Medical Takaful contracts Preginm Allacation Approach

Al retakaful contracts held other than those held

corresponding to term life and Unit linked contracts  Retakaful contracts held Preminm Allocation Approach

retafeafil contracts held corresponding to term life

and unit linked contracts Retakaful contracts held General Measurement Mode!
Level of aggregation

While deciding on the portfolio level under IFRS 17, the Group has considered the criteria of “similar risk
and managed together” while taking into account the materiality of each product/pottfolio.

Each portfolio is further disaggregated into groups of contracts that are issued within a calendar year (annual
cohorts) and are (i) contracts that are onerous at initial recognition; (ii} contracts that at initial recognition
have no significant possibility of becoming onerous subsequently; or (iii) a group of remaining contracts.

Recognition

Groups of takaful contracts issued are initially recognised from the eatliest of the following:

s the beginning of the coverage period.

. the date when the first payment from the participant is due or actually received, if thete is no due
date; or

. when the Group determines that a group of contracts becomes onerous
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Takaful Emarat - Insurance (PSC) and its subsidiary
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

4 Material accounting policies (continued)
IERS 17 Takaful contracts (continued)
Separating components from takaful and retakaful contracts

The Group assessed its takaful and retakaful contracts to determine whether they contained distinct
components which must be accounted for under another reporting standard instead of IFRS 17.

The investment components included in the life takaful contracts are highly interrelated to the takaful
component and ate thus not distinct. Accotdingly, the Group shall not unbundle the cash flows related to
the investment component.

Contract boundary

The measurement of a group of takaful contracts includes all futute cash flows expected to arise within the
boundary of each contract in the group.

Cash flows are within the boundary of takaful contract if they arise from substantive rights and obligations
that exist during the reporting petiod in which the Group can compel the participant to pay the premiums,
ot in which the Group has a substantive obligation to provide the participant with takaful contract services.
A substantive obligation to provide takaful contract services ends when:

. The Group has the practical ability to reassess the tisks of the particular participant and, as a result,
can set a price or level of benefits that fully reflects those risks; or

. Both of the following ctiteria are satisfied:

i The Group has the practical ability to reassess the risks of the portfolio of takaful contracts
that contain the contract and, as a result, can set a price or level of benefits that fully reflects

the tisk of that portfolio; and
i, The pricing of the premiums up to the date when the risks are reassessed does not take into
account the risks that relate to periods after the reassessment date.

Takaful contracts measured under the premium allocation approach - Initial and subsequent
measurement

The Group applies the premium allocation approach to all the takaful contracts (other than long term
Individual and Group life takaful contracts) that it issues and retakaful contracts that it holds as:

The coverage petiod of each contract in the group is one year or less, including takaful contract services
arising from all premiums within the contract boundary; or

For all the portfolios having contracts longer than one year, the Group expects the measurement of the
liability for temaining coverage for the group does not differ matetially from the measurement that would
be produced applying the general measurement model. In assessing materiality, the Group has decided to
set the acceptable threshold for the comparison of LRC between PAA and GMM using a combination of
relative and absolute materiality criteria.

For a group of contracts that is not onerous at initial recognition, the Group measures the liability for
remaining coverage as:

. The premiums, if any, received at initial recognition;
. Minus any takaful acquisiion cash flows at that date;
. Plus, ot minus any amount atising from the derecognition at that date of the asset recognised for

takaful acquisition cash flows;

. Any other asset or liability previously recognised for cash flows related to the group of contracts that
the Group pays ot receives before the group of takaful contracts is recognised;

. The Group measures the cartying amount of the liability for remaining coverage at the end of each
reporting petiod as the liability for remaining coverage at the beginning of the petiod;

# Plus, premiums received in the period;
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Takaful Emarat - Insurance (PSC) and its subsidiary
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

4 Material accounting policies (continued)
IFRS 17 Takaful contracts (continued)

Takaful contracts measured under the premium allocation approach - Initial and subsequent
measurement (continued)

. Minus takaful acquisition cash flows;

. Plus, any amounts relating to the amortisation of the takaful acquisition cash flows recognised as an
expense in the reporting period for the group;

. Plus, any adjustment to the financing component, where applicable;

s Minus the amount recognised as takaful revenue for the services provided in the petiod;

. Minus any investment component paid or transferted to the liability for incurred claims.

The Group estimates the liability for incurred claims as the fulfilment cash flows related to incurred claims.
The fulfilment cash flows incorporate, in an unbiased way, all reasonable and supportable information
available without undue cost or effort about the amount, timing and uncertainty of those future cash flows,
they reflect current estimates from the perspective of the Group and include an explicit adjustment for
non-financial risk (the tisk adjustment).

When facts and citrcumstances indicate that a group of contracts has become onerous, the Group performs
a test for onerousness, If the amount of the fulfilment cash flows exceeds the cartying amount of the LRC,
the Group recognises the amount of the difference as a loss in profit or loss and increases the LRC for the
corresponding amount.

Takaful contracts measured other than PAA - Initial and subsequent measurement

The Group measures a group of contracts on initial recognition as the sum of the expected fulfilment cash
flows within the contract boundary and the contractual service margin representing the unearned profit in
the contracts relating to services that will be provided under the contracts.

Fulfilment cash flows comptise unbiased and probability-weighted estimates of future cash flows,
discounted to present value to reflect the time value of money and financial tisks, plus a risk adjustment for
non-financial risk.

The Group’s objective in estimating future cash flows is to determine the expected value, or the probability
weighted mean, of the full range of possible outcomes, consideting all reasonable and supportable
information available at the reporting date without undue cost or effort.

The Group updates its estimates at the end of each reporting period using all newly available information,
as well as historic evidence and information about trends. The Group determines its current expectations
of probabilities of future events occurting at the end of the reporting period. In developing new estimates,
the Group considers the most tecent expetience and eatlier experience, as well as other information.

Subsequent measurement
The CSM at the end of the reporting period represents the profit in the group of takaful contracts that has
not yet been recognised in profit or loss, because it relates to future service to be provided.

For a group of takaful contracts, the carrying amount of the CSM of the group at the end of the reporting
pericd equals the carrying amount at the beginning of the reporting period adjusted, as follows:

. The effect of any new contracts added to the group.
. For contracts measured under the GMM, profit accreted on the carrying amount of the CSM during
the reporting period, measuted at the discount rates at initial recognition.
» The changes in fulfilment cash flows relating to future service, except to the extent that:
- Such increases in the fulfilment cash flows exceed the catrying amount of the CSM, giving rise
to a loss; or

- Such decreases in the fulfilment cash flows are allocated to the loss component of the liability
for remaining coverage.
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Takaful Emarat - Insurance (PSC) and its subsidiary
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

4 Material accounting policies (continued)
IFRS 17 Takaful contracts (continued)
Takaful contracts measured other than PAA - Initial and subsequent measurement {continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

. The effect of any currency exchange differences on the CSM,

¥ The amount recognised as takaful revenue because of the transfer of takaful contract services in the
petiod, determined by the allocation of the CSM remaining at the end of the reporting period (before
any allocation) over the current and remaining coverage period.

For direct participating contracts measured under the VFA, the Group adjusts the CSM for the change in

the amount of the Group’s share of the fair value of the underlying items and changes in fulfilment cash

flows that relate to future services, except to the extent that:

. A decrease in the amount of the Group’s share of the fair value of the underlying items, or an increase
in the fulfilment cash flows that relate to fututre services, exceeds the carrying amount of the CSM,
giving tise to a loss in profit or loss (included in takaful setvice expenses) and creating a loss
component; ot

. An inctease in the amount of the Group’s share of the fair value of the undetlying items, or a decrease
in the fulfilment cash flows that relate to future services, is allocated to the loss component, reversing
losses previously recognised in profit or loss (included in takaful service expenses).

The changes in fulfilment cash flows telating to future service that adjust the CSM comprise of:

. Experience adjustments that arise from the difference between the premium receipts (and any related
cash flows such as takaful acquisition cash flows and takaful premium taxes) and the estimate, at the
beginning of the petiod, of the amounts expected. Differences telated to premiums received (ot due)
related to cutrent or past setvices are recognised immediately in profit or loss while differences
related to premiums received (or due) for future services are adjusted against the CSM.

C Changes in estimates of the present value of future cash flows in the liability for remaining coverage.
Fort contracts measured under the GMM these changes exclude those relating to the time value of
money and changes in financial risk (recognised in the statement of income statement and other
comptehensive income rather than adjusting the CSM).

“ Differences between any investment component expected to become payable in the period and the
actual investment component that becomes payable in the petiod. Those differences are determined
by compating (i) the actual investment component that becomes payable in the period with (i) the
payment in the period that was expected at the start of the period plus any takaful finance income
or expenses related to that expected payment before it becomes payable.

. Changes in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk that relate to future service.

For direct participating contracts measured under the VFA changes in fulfilment cash flows that relate to
future services and adjust the CSM are measured at current discount rates and include the changes in the
effect of the time value of money and financial risks that do not atise from undetlying items.

Whete, during the coverage period, a group of takaful contracts becomes onerous, the Group recognises a
loss in profit ot loss for the net outflow, resulting in the carrying amount of the liability for the group being
equal to the fulfilment cash flows. A loss component is established by the Group for the liability for
remaining coverage for such onerous group depicting the losses recognised.

The Group measures the carrying amount of a group of takaful contracts at the end of each reporting
petiod as the sum of: (i) the liability for remaining coverage comprising fulfilment cash flows related to
future service allocated to the group at that date and the CSM of the group at that date; and (ii) the lability
for incutred claims for the Group comprising the fulfilment cash flows related to past service allocated to

the group at that date.

19



Takaful Emarat - Insurance (PSC) and its subsidiary
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

4 Material accounting policies (continued)
IFRS 17 Takaful contracts (continued)
Retakaful contracts held

Retakaful contracts held are accounted for applying IFRS 17 when they meet the definition of an takaful
contract. This includes the condition that the contract must transfer significant takaful risk.

Retakaful contracts transfer significant takaful tisk only if they transfer to the reinsurer substantially all the
takaful risk relating to the reinsured pottions of the undetlying takaful contracts, even if a retakaful contract
does not expose the issuer (reinsutet) to the possibility of a significant loss,

Portfolios of retakaful contracts held are assessed for aggregation separately from portfolios of takaful
contracts issued. Applying the grouping requirements to retakaful contracts held, the Group aggregates
retakaful contracts held concluded within a calendar year (annual cohorts) into groups of (i) contracts for
which thete is a net gain at initial recognition, if any; (ii) contracts for which at initial recognition there is
no significant possibility of a net gain arising subsequently; and (iii} remaining contracts in the portfolio, if
any.

A group of retakaful contracts held is recognised at the eatlier of the following:

. If the retakaful contracts provide proportionate coverage, the date the Group initially recognises any
underlying takaful contracts (onerous or not)

. In all other cases, at the beginning of the coverage period of the group of retakaful contracts.
Howevet, if the Group recognises an onetous group of undetlying takaful contracts on an earlier
date and the related retakaful contract was entered into befote that eatlier date, then the group of
retakaful contracts is recognised on that earlier date.

Cash flows are within the contract boundary if they arise from substantive rights and obligations that exist
duting the repotting petiod in which the Group is compelled to pay amounts to the reinsurer or has a
substantive right to receive services from the reinsurer. A substantive right to receive services from the
reinsurer shall end when the reinsurer:

. has the practical ability to reassess the tisks transfetred to it and can set a price or level of benefits
that fully reflects those reassessed tisks; or

. has a substantive right to terminate the coverage.

The Group measures its retakaful assets for a group of retakaful contracts that it holds on to the same basis
as takaful contracts that it issues. However, they are adapted to reflect the features of retakaful contracts
held that differ from takaful contracts issued. Where the Group recognises a loss on initial recognition of
an onerous group of underlying takaful contracts or when further onerous underlying takaful contracts are
added to a gtoup, the Group establishes a loss-recovery component of the asset for remaining coverage for
a group of retakaful contracts held depicting the recovery of losses.

Modification and derecognition
The Group derecognises takaful contracts when:

. The rights and obligations relating to the contract are extinguished (i.e., discharged, cancelled or
expired); or

» The contract is modified such that the modification results in a change in the measurement model,
or the applicable standard for measuring a component of the contract. In such cases, the Group
derecognises the initial contract and recognises the modified contract as a new contract.

When a modification is not treated as a derecognition, the Group recognises amounts paid ot teceived for
the modification with the contract as an adjustment to the relevant liability for remaining coverage.

Allocation of expenses

Group has prepared an expense allocation model, on the basis of which, operating expenses have been
classified into the following categories:
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Takaful Emarat - Insurance (PSC) and its subsidiary
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

4 Material accounting policies (continued)
IFRS 17 Takaful contracts (continued)
Fully attributable expenses

These ate expenses which ate directly related to fulfilling takaful obligation, Expenses such as commission
paid to the broker against an takaful contract, are considered fully attributable expenses.

Partially attributable expenses

These are expenses which are partially related to fulfilling takaful obligation. Of the total expense, the
attributable portion will be allocated to the group of contracts, and the non-attributable portion will be
booked as other operating expense.

Non attributable expenses

Overhead expenses that would be incurred by any business organisation, regardless of whether these
expenses are utilised for fulfilment of takaful obligations would be expensed as incurred as part of ‘other
operating expenses’ (i.e. out of scope of IFRS 17) — being considered predominantly corporate in nature,
or any other expenses that cannot be allocated to group of contracts.

After the expenses were classified into attributable, partially attributable and non-attributable expenses, they
are further classified into the following classes:

. Acquisition cost
. Maintenance expenses
Discount rates

The bottom-up approach is used to detive the discount rate for all contracts within the scope of IFRS 17,
where applicable. Under this approach, the discount rate is determined as the risk-free yield, adjusted for
differences in liquidity characteristics between the financial assets used to derive the tisk-free yield and the
relevant liability cash flows (known as an ‘illiquidity premium’).

Discount rates applied for discounting of future cash flows are listed below:

1year 5 years 10 years 15 years
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

Takaful contract issued

4.82% 5.12% 4.66%  3.66% 4.71% 347%  4.78%  3.44%
Retakaful contracts held

4.82% 5.12% 4.66% 3.66% 4.71% 3.47% 4.78%  3.44%
The three-step approach to derive discount rates has been highlighted below:
. Credit risk premium component is removed from the asset yields of the reference portfolio;
® The illiquidity risk premium is then detived using the risk-free rates and the rates computed in above

step; and

. Subsequently, the bottom-up approach is used by adding this illiquidity premium to the risk-free base
curve in order to arrive at the “point-in-time” locked-in profit rate curve.

Curtently, all the premiums written by the Group ate received within 12 months from the policy start date,
so there are no contracts with significant financing component or credit faciliies. Hence, thete is no
requirement of discounting the liabilities for remaining coverage (LRC) under PAA.

Similatly, most of the claims are settled within 12 months from the date of incurrence. Hence, thete is no
requirement of discounting the liability for incurred claims (LIC) under PAA.

In the future, if the Group has policies with claims pattern exceeding one year, then the Group shall use
the discount rate computed under the bottom-up approach to determine the impact of discounting,
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Takaful Emarat - Insurance (PSC) and its subsidiary
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

4 Material accounting policies (continued)
IFRS 17 Takaful contracts (continued)
Risk adjustment for non-financial risk

The risk adjustment for non-financial risk is the compensation that the Group requires for bearing the
uncertainty about the amount and timing of the cash flows of groups of takaful contracts. The risk
adjustment reflects an amount that an insurer would rationally pay to remove the uncertainty that future
cash flows will exceed the expected value amount.

The portfolios for which the Group has adopted PAA simplification for the calculation of liability for
remaining coverage, risk adjustment for LRC would only be estimated in case group of contracts recognised
as onerous, For portfolios measured under general measurement model or the variable fee approach, risk
adjustment would be required for the calculation of both LRC and LIC.

The Group reviewed a range of possible methodologies to estimate the RA for LRC and LIC. For RA LIC,
under non-life and group lifelines of business, the Group has decided to use the Mack approach. For long
term life contracts, the Group will use the e-forms approach for LRC RA. For LIC RA, the Group will use
the same tisk adjustment % as calculated for LRC. The Group has decided to use 70th to 75th petcentile
for all lines of business.

Contractual service margin (CSM) - GMM and VFA

The CSM is a component of the asset or liability for the group of takaful contracts that represents the
unearned profit the Group will recognise as it provides services in the future.

An amount of the CSM for a group of takaful contracts is recognised in profit or loss as takaful revenue in
each perod to reflect the takaful contract services provided under the group of takaful contracts in that
period. The amount is determined by:

. Identifying the coverage units in the group.

§ Allocating the CSM at the end of the period (before recognising any amounts in profit or loss to
reflect the takaful contract services provided in the period) equally to each coverage unit provided in
the current period and expected to be provided in the future.

The number of coverage units in a group is the quantity of takaful contract services provided by the
contracts in the group, determined by considering the quantity of the benefits provided and the expected
coverage period.

The coverage unit for both groups, unit linked life takaful contracts and other long term life groups of
contracts, the coverage unit is the amount of benefit payable in case of death claim. The total coverage units
of each group of takaful contracts are reassessed at the end of each reporting period to adjust for the
reduction of remaining coverage for claims paid, expectations of lapses and cancellation of contracts in the
petiod. They are then allocated based on probability-weighted average duration of each coverage unit
provided in the current period and expected to be provided in the future.

For retakaful contracts issued, the numbet of coverage units in a group reflects the expected sum at risk of
contracts because the level of service provided depends on the amount of sum at risk in force. The
remaining coverage is allocated based on probability weighted average duration of each coverage unit
provided in the current period and expected to be provided in the future.

Onerosity determination

IFRS 17 does not provide any specific guidance about which facts and circumstances should be considered,
to indicate that a group of contracts is onerous on initial recognition or subsequently. The Group assesses
the onerosity considering the factots such as:

1) the expected tatio of claims to premiums (or any other measurement of expected profitability)
compared with the actual ratio over the coverage period.

b) economic ot regulatory changes that can cause significant revisions in the expected cash flows; or

c) significant changes to the costs involved in fulfilling contracts: e.g., as a result of intetnal
reorganisations or changes to the prices of services or products used to fulfil its takaful obligations.
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4 Material accounting policies (continued)
IFRS 17 Takaful contracts (continued)
Onerosity determination (continued)

For long term individual life contracts the onerosity is detetmined based on the level of profit matgin at
inception of the group of contracts. If the level of profit margin falls below a defined limit, the group of
contracts are marked as onerous

Profit margin is calculated as proportion of expected present value of inflows to expected present value of
premium at inception of the group of contracts.

Time value of money

The Group adjusts the carrying amount of the takaful contracts liabilities and retakaful contracts assets to
reflect the time value of money and the effect of financial risk using discount rates that reflect the
characteristics of the cashflows of the group of contracts for the takaful contracts recognised under GMM
and VFA.

Discounting

For cash flows that do not vary based on the returns on undetlying items, an entity may determine the
discount rate based on a liquid tisk-free yield curve. This is adjusted to eliminate differences between the
liquidity characteristics of the financial instruments that undetlie the chosen curve and those of the takaful
contract. The Group has elected to use the Bottom-up approach in determining the discount rates based
on liquid risk-free yield curve.

Liability for incurred claims

The Group will calculate the LFIC as follows:
. Best Estimate (BEL) of the fulfilment cash flows relating to incurred claims including outstanding

claims, IBNR and IBNER:

. Expenses already incurred but not yet paid in relation to claims and the cost of handling incurred
claims at that date.

. Adjustment for the time value of money and,

. Risk adjustment for non-financial risks.

Rental income

Rental income from investment property which are leased under operating leases are recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Property and equipment
Property and equipment are carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any identified impaitment
losses. Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets, over their estimated useful lives, using

the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are teviewed
at each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to atise from the continued use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on disposal ot retirement
of an item of property and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Years
Buildings 22
Office equipment 5
Fixtures and fittings 7
Motor vehicles 5
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4 Material accounting policies (continued)
Investment properties

Investment propetties are properties held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for
both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, used in providing services ot for administrative
purposes. Investment properties are measured at cost on initial recognition and subsequently at fair value
with any change there in recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The Group determines fair value on the basis of valuations provided by two independent valuers who hold
a recognised and relevant professional qualification and have recent experience in the location and category
of the investment properties being valued. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment propetties. The cost of self-constructed investment propetties include the
cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the investment properties
to a working condition for their intended use and capitalised finances costs.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group teviews the catrying amounts of theit tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether thete is any indication that those assets have suffered an impaitment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any). Whete it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they ate allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified. Recoverable amount is the
higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation dectease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the cartying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased catrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in the profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is cartied at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is treated as revaluation increase.

Financial instruments
Recognition, initial measurement and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value plus transactions costs. Regular
way purchases and sales of financial assets ate recognised on the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset i.e. the trade date. Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the financial asset and all substantial tisks and
rewards are transferred. A financial liability is derecognised when it is extinguished.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

For the purposes of subsequent measurement, the Group classifies its financial assets into the following
categories:

Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets at amortised cost are those financial assets for which:
- the Group’s business model is to hold them in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms give rise on specific dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
profit on the principal amount outstanding.
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4 Material accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets at amortised cost (continued)

After initial recognition these are measured at amortised cost using the effective funding cost method, less
provision for impairment. Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial.

These are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period which are classified as non-curtent assets.

Financial assets at amortised cost comprise statutory deposits, cash and cash equivalents, due from related
parties and most other receivables.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVTOCI’)

Investments in equity securities are classified as FVTOCI. At initial recognition, the Group can make an
irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate investments in equity investments
at FVT'OCI. Designation at FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading.

Gain or loss arising from change in fair value of investments at FVTOCI is recognised in other
comprehensive income and reported within the fair value reserve for investments at FVTOCI within equity.

When the asset is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income is
not reclassified from the equity reserve to profit or loss but is reclassified to retained earnings.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (‘FVTPL’)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVIPL, unless the Group designates an investment
that is not held for trading as at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) on initial
recognition,

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting petiod, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Dividend income on investments in equity instruments at FVIPL is recognised in statement of income
when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established.

Fair value measurement

For investments traded in organised financial markets, fair value is determined by reference to stock
exchange quoted prices at the close of business on the statement of financial position date. Investments in
unquoted secutities are measured at fair value, considering observable market inputs and unobsetrvable
financial data of investees.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities comptise amounts due to related parties and most other payables.

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective funding cost method.
Impairment and uncollectability of financial assets

The Group tecognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL) on the following financial
instruments that are not measured at FVTPL:

e financial assets that are debt instruments;

® financial guarantee contracts issued; and

¢ financing commitments issued.

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL) on the following financial
instruments that are not measured at FVIPL:

e financial assets that are debt instruments;
® financial guarantee contracts issued; and
® financing commitments issued.
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4 Material accounting policies (continued)
Impairment and uncollectability of financial assets (continued)

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for those financial
instruments on which credit risk has not increased significantly since their initial recognition, in which case
12-month ECL are measured.

12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within the 12 months after reporting date.

ECL are probabﬂity-weighted estimates of credit losses. They are measured as follows:

® financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the teporting date: as the ptresent value of all cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

® financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between the gross
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows;

® undrawn financing commitments: as the present value of the difference between the contractual cash
flows that ate due to the Group if the commitment is drawn down and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive; and

e financial guarantee contracts: the expected payments to reimburse the holder less any amounts that
the Group expects to recovet.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position
only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

The cost of short-term employee benefits (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered
such as paid vacation leave and bonuses) is recognised in the period in which the service is rendered.

Provision for employees’ end of service benefits

A provision for employees' end of service benefits is made for the full amount due to employees for their
periods of setvice up to the reporting date in accordance with the UAE Labour Law and is reported as
separate line item under non-cutrent liabilities. The entitlement to end of service benefits is based upon the
employees’ salary and length of service, subject to the completion of a minimum service period as specified
in the UAE Labour Law. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to AED at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the statement of
financial position date are translated to AED at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Foreign
exchange differences atising on translation are recognised in the profit of loss.

Non-monetary items are not retranslated at year-end and are measured at historical cost (translated using
the exchange rates at the transaction date), except for non-monetary items measured at fair value which are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when fair value was determined.

Short term operating leases

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
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4 Material accounting policies (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call deposits, current accounts and fixed deposits which
have original maturities of less than 3 months and are free from lien.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when present obligations as a result of a past event will probably lead to an
outflow of economic resources from the Group and amounts can be estimated reliably.

Timing ot amount of the outflow may still be uncertain. A present obligation atises from the presence of a
legal or constructive commitment that has resulted from past events.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on the
most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with
the present obligation. Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will
be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. Provisions ate
discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is matetial.

Any reimbursement that the Group can be virtually certain to collect from a third party with respect to the
obligation is recognised as a separate asset. However, this asset may not exceed the amount of the related
provision.

All provisions ate reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the cutrent best estimate.

In those cases where the possible outflow of economic tesoutces as a tesult of present obligations is
considered improbable or remote, no liability is recognised, unless it was assumed in the course of a business
combination.

Possible inflows of economic benefits to the Group that do not yet meet the recognition criteria of an asset
are considered contingent assets.

Taxation

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the profit and loss account
except to the extent that relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in
which case it is recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current

Provision for carrent taxation is based on taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the
prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or
tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the year, if enacted. The charge for current tax also includes
adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from
assessments finalised during the current year for such years.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is accounted for using the statement of financial position liability method in respect of
all temporary differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the cortesponding tax bases used in the computation of the
taxable profit. Defetred tax liabilities ate generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse
based on tax rates that have been enacted ot substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax is
charged or credited in the profit and loss account, except in the case of items credited or charged to
statement of comptehensive income in which case it is included in statement of comprehensive income,
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4 Material accounting policies (continued)
Equity, reserves and dividend payments

Share capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued.
Other details for reserves ate mentioned in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Retained earnings include all current and ptior petiod retained profits or losses.

Dividend payable to equity shareholders is included in other liabilities only when the dividend has been
approved in a general assembly meeting prior to the reporting date,

Segment reporting

Under IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”, reported segments’ profits are based on internal management
reporting information that is regulartly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker. The measurement
policies used by the Group for segment reporting under IFRS 8 are the same as those used in its consolidated
financial statements.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Judgements and estimates

The preparation of this consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that effect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, income, and expense. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the significant judgements made by management in
applying the accounting policies and the key sources of estimation uncertainty were the same as those that
wete applied in the audited consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December
2023, except for the below judgements.

Takaful and retakaful contracts

The Group applies the PAA to simplify the measurement of takaful contracts. When measuring liabilities
for incurred claims, the Group now discounts cash flows that are expected to occur more than one year
after the date on which the claims ate incurred and includes an explicit fisk adjustment for non-financial
tisk.

Liability for remaining coverage

For takaful acquisition cash flows, the Group is eligible and chooses to capitalise all takaful acquisition
cashflows upon payments.

The effect of recognising takaful acquisition cash flows as an expense on initial recognition of group of
takaful contracts is to increase the liability for remaining coverage on initial recognition and reduce the
likelihood of any subsequent onerous contract loss. There would be an increased charge to profit or loss
on initial recognition, due to expensing acquisition cash flows, offset by an increase in profit released over
the coverage period. For groups of contracts that are onerous, the liability for remaining coverage is
determined by the fulfilment cash flows.

Liability for incurred claims

The ultimate cost of outstanding claims is estimated by using a range of standard actuarial claims projection
techniques, such as Chain Ladder and Bornheutter-Ferguson methods.

The main assumption underlying these techniques is that a Group’s past claims development expetience
can be used to project future claims development and hence ultimate claims costs. These methods
extrapolate the development of paid and incutred losses, average costs per claim (including claims handling
costs), and claim numbets based on the observed development of earlier years and expected loss ratios.
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4 Material accounting policies (continued)
Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Liability for incurred claims (continued)

Historical claims development is mainly analysed by accident years, but can also be further analysed by
geographical area, as well as by significant business lines and claim types. Large claims are usually separately
addressed, either by being resetved at the face value of loss adjuster estimates or separately projected in
order to reflect their future development. In most cases, no explicit assumptions are made regarding future
rates of claims inflation or loss ratios. Instead, the assumptions used are those implicit in the historical
claims development data on which the projections are based. Additional qualitative judgement is used to
assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in future, (e.g., to reflect one-off occurrences, changes
in external or market factors such as public attitudes to claiming, economic conditions, levels of claims
inflation, judicial decisions and legislation, as well as internal factors such as portfolio mix, policy features
and claims handling procedures) in otder to atrive at the estimated ultimate cost of claims that present the
probability weighted expected value outcome from the range of possible outcomes, taking account of all
the uncertainties involved.

Other key circumstances affecting the reliability of assumptions include variation in profit rates, delays in
settlement and changes in foreign cuttency exchange rates.

Risk adjustment for non-financial risk

The tisk adjustment for non-financial risk is the compensation that the Group requires for bearing the
uncettainty about the amount and timing of the cash flows of groups of takaful contracts. The risk
adjustment teflects an amount that a takaful operator would rationally pay to remove the uncertainty that
future cash flows will exceed the expected value amount.

The Group has estimated the risk adjustment using a confidence level (probability of sufficiency) approach
at the 65th percentile. That is, the Group has assessed its indifference to uncertainty for all product lines
(as an indication of the compensation that it requites for bearing non-financial risk) as being equivalent to
the 65th percentile confidence level less the mean of an estimated probability distribution of the future cash
flows. The Group has estimated the probability distribution of the future cash flows, and the additional
amount above the expected present value of future cash flows required to meet the target percentiles.

Fair value of unquoted securities

Fait value of unquoted securites has been determined by the management based on Earnings Multiple and
Net Assets Value Techniques using observable market data of comparable public entities, certain discount
factors and unobservable financial data of respective non-public investees. Actual results may substantially
be different.

Investment properties fair value judgement

Fair value of investment property is estimated by two independent professional valuers for disclosure
putposes oaly, consideting the rental yield (income approach). This estimate is made on an annual basis
considering market rent and average rental yield. Fair value was dependent on market factors and availability
of information.

Expected credit losses (ECL)

The measurement of ECL is a significant estimate that involves determination of methodology, models
and data inputs. The following components have a majot impact on the credit loss allowance for debt
instruments carried at amortised cost, FVTOCI investments, bank balances and fixed deposits: definition
of default, significant increase in credit risk, probability of default (“PD”), exposure at default (“EAD™),
and loss given default (“LGD”) and the histotical loss experience per ageing bucket has the major impact
on the credit loss allowance for takaful and other receivables. The Group tegulatly reviews and validates
the models and inputs to the models to reduce any differences between expected credit loss estimates and
actual credit loss experience.,
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6 Iinvestment properties

Investment properties include plot of land, rented out apartments and apartments that are still under
construction. All investment propetties are located in the U.AE.

The fair values were determined based on comparable method for rented out apartments and residual
method of valuation for under construction properties.

2024 2023

AED’000 AED’000

Residential apartments* 21,815 20,834
Land** 33,175 23,275
Work in progress** 52,925 39,875
107,915 83,984

* Residential apartments are carried at fair value of the investment property as of 31 December 2024, based
on an valuation undertaken by independent qualified valuets, amounted to AED 21.8 million after sale of
three apartments. (2023: AED 20.8 million).

*%* Land, on which construction is under progress, and the wotk in progress as at 31 December 2024
amounting to AED 86.1 million (31 December 2023: AED 63.2 million) are stated at its fair value as
determined by two independent valuer having an approptiate recognised professional qualification and
recent experience in the region. The Company recognises the average of fair value from both valuers. And
wortk in progress comptises construction of residential building and all other related costs.

The construction is expected to be completed within year 2025, at which point the property will be
reclassified from work in progtress to completed investment properties in accordance with the Group's
accounting policies.

2024 Apartments Building Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000

At 1 January 20,834 63,150 83,984
Sale of investment properties (2,345) - (2,345)
Change in fair value during the year 3,289 9,900 13,189
Addition in WIP 37 13,050 13,087
At 31 December 2024 21,815 36,100 107,915
2023 Apartments Building Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000

At 1 January 13,266 44,439 57,705
Change in fair value during the year 7,568 7,873 15,441
Addition in WIP - 10,838 10,838
At 31 December 2023 20,834 63,150 83,084

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group sold three residential apartments located in
Topaz 2, Dubai Silicon Oasis in the Emirate of Dubai for a total consideration of AED
2.3 million (2023: Nil).

The properties have been categorised as Level 3 based on the inputs to the valuation technique used; and in
estimating the fait value, the highest and best use of the properties is their current use.
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6 Investment properties (continued)

The rental income earned by the Group from its investment properties which atre leased under operating
leases and the direct operating expenses arising in the management of investments properties were as
follows:

2024 2023
AED000 AED’000
Rental income 573 532
Direct operating expenses (89 (130)
Income from investment propetty 484 402
7 Investment in securities
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
2024 2023
AED’000 AED’000
Mutual funds 355,767 343,239
Equity investments — quoted 22,500 -
Equity investments — unquoted 16,386 4,786
394,653 348,025
Investments made:
- Within UAE 115,046 79,748
- Outside UAE 279,607 268,277
394,653 348,025
Attributable to:
Participants 389,824 343,196
Shareholders 4,829 4.829
394,653 348,025
The movement in other financial assets are as follows:
2024 2023
AED’000 AED’000
At 1 January 348,025 265,658
Net purchased during the year 34,430 27,161
Change in fair value* 12,598 55,206
At 31 December 394,653 348,025
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7 Investment in securities (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

2024 2023

AED’000 AED’000

As at 1 January - -
Reversal of impairment Josses* 8,400 -
As at 31 December 8,400 -

The investment carried at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVT'OCI) is atttibutable to
participants and within UAE.

*During the year, an impairment reversal on unquoted equity investment at fair value through profit and loss
(FVTPL) and other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) has been recognised as a result of observable market
data indicating a recovery in the fair value of previously impaired unquoted investments.

8 Takaful and retakaful contracts

The breakdown of groups of takaful and retakaful contracts issued, and retakaful contracts held, that are in an
asset position and those in a liability position is set out in the table below:

2024 2023
Assets Liabilitdes Net Assets  Liabilities Net
AED000 AED000 AED000 AED000 AED’000 AED’000
Takaful contracts
issued
Group life and medical - (325,972) (325,972) - (206,651)  (206,651)
Individual life - (339,554) (339,554) - (329,592)  (329,592)
Total takaful

contracts issued

(665,526)  (665,526) (536,243)  (536,243)

Retakaful contracts

held
Group life and medical 44,240 - 44,240 33,700 - 33,700
Individual life - (5,133) (5,133) - (3,453) (3,453)
Total retakaful

contracts held 44,240 (5,133) 39,107 33,700 (3,453) 30,247

33
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Takaful Emarat - Insurance (PSC) and its subsidiary

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2024

8 Takaful and retakaful contracts (continued)

In addition to scenatio testing, the development of takaful contract liabilities provides a measure of the Group’s
ability to estimate the ultimate value of claims. The top half of each table illustrates how the Group’s estimate
of liability for incurred claims for each accident year has changed at successive year-ends. The bottom half of
the table reconciles the cumulative claims to the amount appearing in the statement of financial position. The
following tables illustrate the Group’s estimate of total liability for incurred claims for the years up to 2024.

Gross takaful contract liabilities at 31 December 2024 for contracts measured under PAA

2021 & prior

years 2022 2023 2024 Total
AED’000 AED000 AED’000 AED000 AED’000
At the end of each reporting year 1,233,796 279,038 160,846 315,276 1,988,956
One year later 734,986 231,478 156,935 - 1,123,399
Two years later 677,676 232,873 - - 910,549
Three years later 676,304 - - - 676,304
Estimate of
cumulative claims 676,304 232,873 156,935 315,276 1,381,388
Cumulative payments to date (669,423) (231,385) (152,923) (230,274)  (1,284,005)
Unallocated loss adjustment expense
reserve - - - - 420
Claims payable - - - 1,511
Total gross undiscounted liabilities
for incurred claims - - - - 99,313
Attributable expenses - - - 11,349
Total discounted gross reserves
included in the statement of
financial position - - - - 110,662
Risk adjustments - - - - 2,779
Gross retakaful contract liabilities at 31 December 2024 for contracts measured under PAA
2021 & prior
years 2022 2023 2024 Total
AED000 AED’000 AED000 AED’000 AED000
At the end of each reporting year 475,764 94,029 96,556 189,419 855,768
One year later 299,100 88,736 95,613 - 483,449
Two yeats later 248,164 89,104 - - 337,268
Three years later 248,072 - - - 248,072
Estimate of
cumulative claims 248,072 89,104 95,613 189,419 622,208
Cumulative payments to date (247,476) (88,440) (93,428) (137,449) (566,793)
Unallocated loss adjustment expense
reserve - - - - -
Claims receivable - - - - 134,030
Total gross undiscounted liabilities
for incurred claims - - - - 189,445
RI nonperformance risk - - - = 947)
Total discounted gross reserves
included in the statement of
financial position - = - - 188,498
Risk adjustments - - 7 - 1,562
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9 Other receivables

2024 2023
AED’000 AED’000
Other receivables 6,570 7,715
Investment receivables 3,335 343
Prepayments 2,031 1,759
Advances 38 631
11,974 10,448

Attributable to:
Participants 5,475 5,648
Shareholders 6,499 4.800
11,974 10,448

10 Statutory deposit

Statutory deposit of amounting AED 4 million is maintained in accordance with the requirements of UAE
Federal Law No. (48) of 2023 (pteviously UAE Federal Law No. (6) of 2007, as amended) for the purpose
of catrying on takaful operations in the United Arab Emirates and is not available to finance the day-to-day
operations of the Group.

11 Cash and bank balances

2024 2023

AED000 AED000

Cash on hand 271 45
Cash at banks 277,979 62,656
Term deposit having maturity more than 3 months 48,610 13,610
Less: Expected credit losses (268) (70
Cash and bank balances 326,592 76,241

Attributable to:

Participants 223,101 50,791
Shareholdets 103,491 25,450
326,592 76,241

For the putpose of cash flow, the cash and cash equivalents at each year end is as follows:

2024 2023

AED’000 AED’000

Cash and bank balances 326,592 76,241
Add: Expected credit losses 268 70
Less: Term deposit having maturity more than 3 months (48,610) (13,610)
Cash and cash equivalents 278,250 62,701
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12 Share capital

2024 2023
AED’000 AED’000
Authorised issued and fully paid
210,652,000 (31 December 2023: 150,000,000)
ordinary shares of AED 1 each 210,652 150,000

As part of capital restructuring plan, following events occurred during the year:

®  On 21 October 2024, the Group has completed the reduction of the accumulated losses and has set
off against share capital amounting to AED 124.3 million; and

®  On 6 December 2024, the Group issued 185 million ordinary shates by way of right issue of AED 1
per share which is equal to the nominal value of the Group ordinary shares.

13 Statutory reserves

Statutory reserve

In accordance with U.AE. Law No. (32) of 2021, the Company has established a statutory reserve by
apptropriation of 10% of profit for each year until the reserve equals 50% of the paid-up share capital, This
teserve is not available for distribution except as stipulated by the Law.

On 21 October 2024, the Group has completed the reduction of the accumulated losses and has set off
against statutoty reserves amounting to AED 6.6 million, as approved by the regulators.

The Company has transferred AED 1.1 million from profits to statutory reserve (31 December 2023: Nil).

Retakaful reserve

In accordance with Article 34 issued by the Central Bank of the United Arab Emirates (“CBUAE”), Board
of Directors Decision No. (23) of 2019 the Company has created a retakaful reserve and transferred an
amount of AED 1.3 million (2023: AED 0.698 million).

The Company shall accumulate such reserve year on year and not dispose-off the reserve without the written
approval of the Director General of the Central Bank of the United Arab Emirates (“CBUAE”).

14 Gross written contributions

Details relating to gross written conttibutions are disclosed below to comply with the requirements of
CBUAE and are not calculated as per the requirements of IFRS 17.

All types of

Life Medical business

takaful takaful combined

2024 AED’000 AED000 AED’000

Total direct written contributions 105,995 510,222 616,217
2023

Total direct written contributions 126,484 272,635 399,119
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15 Other payables

Account payables

Payable to DHA

Other payables

Accrued expenses
Employee related accruals

Attributable to:
Participants
Shareholders

16 Qard Hassan

(63} Deficit in participants’ fund:

As at 1 January
Surplus during the year
As at 31 December

(ii) Qard Hassan from shareholders

As at 1 January
Recovery of provision during the year
As at 31 December

17 Takaful revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2024

CSM recognised for services provided

Change in risk adjustment for non-financial risk for risk
expired

Expected incurred claims and other takaful service
expenses

Experience adjustments

Recovery of takaful acquisition cash flows

Contracts not measured under the PAA

Contracts measured under the PAA

Total takaful revenue

2024 2023

AED’000 AED’000

20,516 16,327

18,041 17,706

15,001 15,032

3,959 2,261

2,569 2,597

60,086 53,923

13,566 18,370

46,520 35,553

60,086 53,923

2024 2023

AED’000 AED’000

(65,724) (93,516)

31,597 27,792

(34,127) (65,724)

2024 2023

AED’000 AED’000

65,724 93,516

(31,597) (27,792)

34,127 65,724

Group life Individual

and medical life Total
AED000 AED’000 AED’000
- 2,979 2,979
= 748 748
- 572 572
- o)} o)
- 6,890 6,890
= 11,188 11,188
409,100 - 409,100
409,100 11,188 420,288
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17 Takaful revenue (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

CSM recognised for services provided

Change in risk adjustmment for non-financial risk for
risk expired

Expected incurred claims and other takaful service
expenses

Experience adjustments

Recovery of takaful acquisition cash flows

Contracts not measured under the PAA

Contracts measured under the PAA

Total takaful revenue

18 Takaful service expense

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Takaful Service Expenses Allocated to

Participants' fund

Incurred claims

Losses on onerous contracts and reversals of those
losses

Changes to liabilities for incurred claims

Total takaful service expenses charged to
participants' fund

Other expenses allocated to shareholders’
fund

Amortisation of takaful acquisition cash flows

Takaful maintenance expenses

Total other expenses charged to shareholders'
fund

Total takaful service expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Takaful Service Expenses Allocated to
Participants' fund

Incurred claims

Losses on onerous contracts and reversals of those
losses

Changes to liabilities for incutred claims

Total takaful service expenses charged to
participants' fund

Other expenses allocated to shareholders’
fund

Amortisation of takaful acquisition cash flows

Takaful maintenance expenses

Total other expenses charged to shareholders'
fund

Total takaful service expenses

Group life Individual
and medical life Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
- 1,422 1,422
- 890 890
- 7,956 7,956
- 24 24
- 5,065 5,065
- 15,357 15,357
213,348 - 213,348
213,348 15,357 228,705
Group life Individual
and medical life Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
325,161 2,260 327,421
718 4,279) (3,561)
(12,403) (1,179) (13,582)
313,476 (3,198) 310,278
52,379 6,890 59,269
35,230 2,659 37,889
87,609 9,549 97,158
401,085 6,351 407,436
166,052 909 166,961
4326 7,594 11,920
(2,134 477 (2,611)
168,244 8,026 176,270
29,882 5,063 34,945
22,968 2,671 25,639
52,850 7,734 60,584
221,094 15,760 236,854
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19 Takaful and retakaful expense and income

2024 2023
AED000 AED000
Takaful finance expenses (587) (57,848)
Retakaful finance income 189 1,342
(398) (56,500)

20 General and administrative expenses
2024 2023
AED’000 AED’000
TPA expenses 21,799 10,595
Salaries and other benefits 17,928 17,471
Authority fees 5,922 2,746
Miscellaneous expenses 6,183 1,205
Legal and professional fees 3,778 3,534
IT expenses 3,155 2,658
Rent and related 1,539 536
Depreciation and amortisation 671 854
Utlities, maintenance and communication 550 392
Account balances write-off - 7,866
Tjarah finance expenses - 377
61,525 48,234

21 Contingent liabilities

On 31 December 2024, the Group had contingent liabilities in respect of medical claims and other matters
arising in the ordinary course of business from which it is anticipated that no material liabilities will arise,

amounting to AED 1.6 million (31 December 2023: AED 1.3 million).

Legal claims

The Group, in common with most insurers, is subject to litigation in the normal course of its business. The
Group, based on independent legal advice, does not believe that the outcome of these court cases will have

a matetial impact on the Group’s income or financial condition.

Capital commitments

Capital commitments for under construction properties as at 31 December 2024 amounted to AED 6.5

million (31 December 2023: AED 6.5 million).
Other commitments

The Group has lease agreements which are payable as follows:

2024 2023
AED000 AED’000
Less than one year 544 633

47



Takaful Emarat - Insurance (PSC) and its subsidiary
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

22 Related party transactions

Related parties represent major shareholders, directors and key management personnel of the Group, and
entities controlled, jointly controlled, or significantly influenced by such parties. The pricing policies and
terms of these transactions are approved by the Group’s management.

Compensation of the key management personnel is as follows:

2024 2023
AED’000 AED’000

Shott/long term employee benefits 6,693 6,377

The Group has no balance receivable and payable from its related parties.

23 Financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordetly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. As such, differences can arise between
book values and the fait value estimates.

Undetlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Group is a going concern without any
intention or requirement to materially curtail the scale of its operations ot to undertake a transaction on
adverse terms.

Fair value of financial instruments carried at amortised cost

Management considers that the cartying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statement approximate their fair values.

Valuation techniques and assumptions applied for the purposes of measuring fair value

The fair values of assets and liabilities are determined using similar valuation techniques and assumptions
as used in the audited annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position The following table
provides an analysis of assets and liabilities that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those detived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active matkets for
identical assets ot liabilities;

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that ate observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as ptices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices); and

Level 3 fair value measurements ate those detived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset
or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The table below gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets are determined:

31 December 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AED'000 AED'000 AED'000 AED'000
Investments at fair value through profit or

loss (FVIPL)
Mutual funds - 355,767 - 355,767
Equity investments — quoted 22,500 - - 22,500
Equity investments — unquoted - - 16,386 16,386

22,500 355,767 16,386 394,653
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23 Financial instruments (continued)

Valuation techniques and assumptions applied for the purposes of measuring fair value
(continued)

31 December 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AED'000 AED'000  AED'000 AED'000

Investments at fair value through profit ot

loss (FVIPL)
Mutual funds - 343,239 - 343,239
Equity investments — unquoted - - 4,786 4,786
- 343,239 4,786 348,025
2024 2023

AED'000  AED'000
Investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
Equity investments — unquoted -
Level 3 8,400 S

There were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurement categories duting the
year ended 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: Nil).

24 Segment information

For management purposes, the Group is otganised into two business segments; Takaful and investment
operations. The takaful operations comptise the takaful business undertaken by the Group on behalf of
policyholders. Investment opetations comprise investments and cash management for the Group’s own
account. No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments.

Segment petrformance is evaluated based on profit or loss which in certain respects is measured differently
from profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements.

Except for wakalah fees, allocation chatges and Qard Hassan, no other inter-segment transactions occurred
duting the year.
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25 Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share

Restated

2024 2023

AED’000 AED’000

Profit/ (loss) for the year attributable to shateholdets 11,162 (12,426)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year 210,652 210,652
Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share 0.053 (0.059)

Basic loss per share are calculated by dividing the loss for the year by the number of weighted average
shares outstanding during the reporting year. Diluted loss pet shate is equivalent to basic loss per share.

During the year, the Company issued 185 million rights issue for the year ended 31 December 2024,
Accordingly, additional number of shares under tights issue share have been adjusted retrospectively in
computing the earning/(loss) per share for the ptior yeats.

26 Capital risk management

Section 2 of the Financial Regulatons for Insurance Companies (the “Regulations™) issued by Central Bank
of UAE identifies the required solvency matgins to be held in addition to takaful liabilities. The solvency
margins must be maintained at all times throughout the yeat.

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to comply with the regulatory requitements in
the UAE and to ensute that it maintains a healthy capital ratio in order to support its business and maximise
shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shateholders, return capital to shareholders ot issue new shares. The Group fully complied with the
externally imposed capital requirements.

The table below summatises the consolidated Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR), Minimum Guatantee
Fund (MGF) and Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) of the Group and the total capital held at the Group
level to meet the required Solvency Margins in line with the requirements of the financial regulations issued
for takaful companies in UAE.

2024 2023

AED’000 AED000

Minimum Capital Requiremnent (MCR) 100,000 100,000
Solvency Capital Requitement (SCR) 107,539 45,934
Minimum Guarantee Fund (MGEF) 56,342 29,861
Basic Own Funds 110,699 (152,740)
MCR Solvency Matgin - Minimum Capital Requirement (Surplus) 10,699 (252,740)
SCR Solvency Margin - Solvency Capital Requirement (Surplus) 3,159 (198,674
MGF Solvency Matgin — Minimum Guarantee Fund (Surplus) 54,357 (182,601)
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27 Risk management
Capital management framework

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to comply with the repulatory requirements in
the UAE and to ensure that it maintains 2 healthy capital ratio in otder to support its business and maximise
shareholdet value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shateholders, return capital to shateholders or issue new shates. The Group fully complied with the
externally imposed capital requirements and no changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the years ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023.

Regulatory framework

Regulators are ptimarily interested in protecting the rights of the participant and monitor them closely to
ensure that the Group is satisfactorily managing affairs for their benefit. At the same time, the regulators
are also interested in ensuring that the Group maintains an appropriate solvency position to meet unforeseen
liabilities arising from economic shocks ot natutal disasters.

The operations of the Group are also subject to regulatory requirements within the jurisdiction where it
operates. Such regulations not only prescribe approval and monitoring of activities, but also impose certain
restrictive provisions (e.g. capital adequacy) to minimise the risk of default and insolvency on the part of
the takaful companies to meet unforeseen liabilities as these arise.

Asset liability management (ALM) framework

Financial tisks arise from open positions in profit rate, currency and equity products, all of which are
exposed to general and specific market movements. The Group manages these positions to achieve long-
term investment returns in excess of its obligations under takaful contracts. The principal technique of the
Group’s ALM is to match assets to the liabilities arising from takaful contracts by reference to the type of
benefits payable to contract holders.

The acting Chief Executive Officer actively monitors the ALM to ensure in each period sufficient cash flow
is available to meet liabilities arising from takaful contracts and regulatly monitors the financial risks
associated with the Group’s other financial assets and liabilities not directly associated with takaful liabilities.

Takaful risk

The principal risk the Group faces under takaful contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments or
the timing thereof, differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims,
actual benefits paid and subsequent development of long-term claims. Thetefore, the objective of the Group
is to ensure that sufficient reserves are available to cover these liabilities.

The above risk exposute is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of takaful contracts. The
variability of risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategy
guidelines, as well as the use of retakaful arrangements.

Frequency and amounts of claims

The frequency and amounts of claims can be affected by several factors. The Group underwrites mainly
medical, group life and personal accident risks. These are regarded as short-term takaful contracts as claims
are normally advised and settled within one year of the insured event taking place. This helps to mitigate
Takaful risk.

Medical, group life and personal accident

Medical takaful is designed to compensate the contract holders for medical costs. Group life and personal
accident takaful entitles the contract holders or their beneficiaries to specified amounts in case of death ot
petmanent ot partial disability. For medical takaful, the main risks are illness and related healthcare costs.
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27 Risk management (continued)

Individual life

For contracts for which death or disability is the insured risk, the significant factors that could increase the
overall frequency of claims are epidemics, widespread changes in lifestyle and natural disasters, resulting in

earlier or more claims than expected. Group wide retakaful limits on any single life insured and on all high-
tisk individuals insured are in place.

The Group has adequate retakaful arrangements to protect its financial viability against such claims for all
the above classes.

Geographical concentration of risks

The takaful risk arising from takaful contracts is primarily concentrated mainly in the United Arab Emirates.
The geographical concentration of risks is similar to last year.

Retakaful risk

In common with othet takaful companies, in otder to minimise financial exposure arising from large takaful
claims, the Group, in the normal course of business, entets into arrangements with other parties for retakaful
purposes. Such retakaful atrangements provide for greater diversification of business, allow management to
control exposure to potential losses arising from large tisks, and provide additional capacity for growth. A
significant portion of the retakaful is effected under treaty, facultative and excess of loss retakaful contracts.

Retakaful ceded contracts do not relieve the Group from its obligations to participant and as a result the
Group remains liable for the portion of outstanding claims reinsured to the extent that the reinsurer fails to
meet the obligations under the retakaful agreements.

To minimise its exposute to significant losses from reinsuret insolvencies, the Group evaluates the financial
condition of its reinsurers. The Group deals with reinsurers approved by the Board of Directors.

The Group has a latge ceding allowance which covers claim risks, including catastrophic risk. The Group’s
reserve performance is monitored frequently to ensure adequacy of reserves.

Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments

Claims on takaful contracts are payable on a claims-occurrence basis. The Group is liable for all insured
events that occutred during the term of the contract, even if the loss is discovered after the end of the
contract term. As a result, liability claims are settled over a long period of time and element of the claims
provision includes incutred but not reported claims (IBNR). The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to
a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of settling claims already notified to the
Group, where information about the claim event is available. IBNR claims may not be appatent to the
insured until many years after the event that gave rise to the claims. For some takaful contracts, the IBNR
proporttion of the total liability is high and will typically display greater variations between initial estimates
and final outcomes because of the greater degree of difficulty of estimating these liabilities. In estimating
the liability for the cost of reported claims not yet paid, the Group considers information available from
loss adjusters and information on the cost of settling claims with similar characteristics in previous periods.
Latge claims are assessed on a case-by-case basis or projected separately in order to allow for the possible
distortive effect of their development and incidence on the rest of the portfolio.

The estimated cost of claims includes direct expenses to be incurred in settling claims, net of the expected
subrogation value and other recoveries. The Group takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has
approptiate information regarding its claims’ exposures. However, given the uncertainty in establishing
claims provisions, it is likely that the final outcome will prove to be different from the original liability
established.
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27 Risk management (continued)
Retakaful risk (continued)
Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments (continued)

The amount of takaful claims is particularly sensitive to the level of court awards and to the development
of legal precedent on matters of contract and tort. takaful contracts are also subject to the emergence of
new types of latent claims, but no allowance is included for this at the end of the reporting period.

Where possible, the Group adopts multiple techniques to estimate the required level of provisions. This
provides a greater understanding of the trends inherent in the experience being projected. The projections
given by the vatious methodologies also assist in estimating the range of possible outcomes. The most
approptiate estimation technique is selected taking into account the characteristics of the business class and
the extent of the development of each accident year.

In calculating the estimated cost of unpaid claims (both reported and not), the Group’s estimation
techniques are a combination of loss-ratio-based estimates and an estimate based upon actual claims
experience using predetermined formulae where greater weight is given to actual claims experience as time
passes. The initial loss-ratio estimate is an important assumption in the estimation technique and is based
on previous years’ experience, adjusted for factors such as premium rate changes, anticipated market
experience and historical claims inflation.

The initial estimate of the loss tatios used for the current year before and after retakaful are analysed below
by type of tisk where the insured operates fot cutrent and ptior year premium earned.

Sensitivity

The liability for incurted claims is sensitive to the key assumptions in the table below. It has not been
possible to quantify the sensitivity of certain assumptions such as legislative changes or uncertainty in the

estimation process. The following sensitivity analysis shows the impact on gross and net liabilities, net profit
and equity for reasonably possible movements in key assumptions with all other assumptions held constant.

The correlation of assumptions will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate impacts, but to
demonstrate the impact due to changes in each assumption, assumptions had to be changed on an individual
basis.

It should be noted that movements in these assumptions are non-linear. The method used for deriving
sensitivity information and significant assumptions did not change from the previous period.

Measured under PAA
Impacton Impacton Impacton Impacton

net profit net profit equity  equity net

Change in gross of net of gross of of

2024 assumptions retakaful retakaful retakaful retakaful

AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000

Risk adjustment 2.5% (3,873) (1,787) (3,873) (1,787)

Discount rate 1% - - - -

Risk adjustment -2.5% 3,854 1,783 3,854 1,783
Discount rate -1%
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27 Risk management (continued)
Sensitivity (continued)

Measured under PAA (continued)

Impact on Impact on Impacton  Impact on

net profit net profit equity equity

Change in gross of net of gross of net of

2023 assumptions retakaful retakaful retakaful retakaful

AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000

Risk adjustment 2.5% (2,578) (1,346) (2,578) (1,346)

Discount rate 1% - - - -

Risk adjustment -2.5% 2,546 1,340 2,546 1,340

Discount rate -1% - - - -

Measured not under PAA

Impacton Impacton Impacton Impacton

net profit net profit equity equity

Change in gross of net of gross of net of

2024 assumptions retakaful retakaful retakaful retakaful

AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED000

Risk adjustment 2.5% (9,513) (8,682) (9,513) (8,682)

Discount rate 1% (1,472) (62) (1,472) (62)

Risk adjustment -2.5% 7,978 7,256 7,978 7,256

Discount rate -1% (1,596) (778) (1,596) (778)
2023

Risk adjustment 2.5% (7,850) (6,062) (7,850) (6,062)

Discount rate 1% (752) 61 (752) 61

Risk adjustment -2.5% 6,720 5,162 6,720 5,162

Discount rate -1% 625 (54) 625 (54)

Financial risk

The Group’s ptincipal financial instruments include financial assets and financial liabilities which comptise
financial investments (at fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale), receivables atising from
takaful and retakaful contracts, statutory deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and takaful and other payables
and jjarah finance.

The Group does not enter into detivative transactions.

The main risks atising from the Group’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity tisk, foreign currency
risk, profit rate tisk and equity price tisk. The board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summatised below:

Credit risk

Credit risk is the trisk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause
the other party to incur a financial loss. For all classes of financial assets held by the Group, the maximum
exposute to credit risk to the Group is the catrying value as disclosed in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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27 Risk management (continued)

Financial risk (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Group’s exposure to credit risk:

The Group only enters into takaful and retakaful contracts with recognised, credit worthy third parties. It is
the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivables from takaful and retakaful contracts are monitoted on an ongoing basis
in order to reduce the Group’s exposute to bad debits.

The Group seeks to limit credit risk with respect to agents and brokers by setting credit limits for individual
agents and brokers and monitoring outstanding receivables.

The Group’s investments at fair value through profit or loss are managed by the Chief Opetating Officet in
accordance with the puidance of the Board of Directors. The Group’s bank balances are maintained with a
range of international and local banks in accordance with limits set by the management.

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the consolidated
statement of financial position:

2024 2023

AED’000 AED’000

Financial instruments 403,053 361,635
Cash and cash equivalents 326,592 76,241
Other receivables (excluding prepayments) 9,943 8,689
Statutory deposits 4,000 4,000
Total credit risk exposure 743,588 450,565

Currency risk

Foreign cutrency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in
foreign exchange rates.

There are no significant exchange rate risks as substantially all financial assets and financial liabilities are
denominated in UAE Dithams or US Dollars to which the UAE Dirham is pegged.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity isk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its commitments associated with takaful
contracts and financial liabilities when they fall due. Liquidity requitements are monitored on a monthly

basis. The maturity profile of the financial assets and financial liabilities at the reporting date based on
contractual repayment arrangements was as follows below:

Less than  More than No maturity
2024 one year one year date Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000

Financial assets

Statutory deposits - - 4,000 4,000
Financial instruments at FVITPL - - 394,653 394,653
Financial insttuments at FVTOCI - - 8,400 8,400

Other receivables (excluding
prepayments) 9,943 - - 9,943
Cash and bank balances 48,610 - 277,982 326,592
58,553 - 685,035 743,588
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27 Risk management (continued)
Financial risk (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Less than More than No maturity
2023 one year one year date Total
AED000 AED’000 AED000 AED000
Financial assets
Statutory deposits - - 4,000 4,000
Financial instruments at FVIPL - - 348,025 348,025
Other receivables {excluding
prepayments) 10,448 - - 10,448
Cash and bank balances - - - 76,241 76,241
10,448 i 428,266 438,714
Financial liabilities
Other payables 53,923 - - 53,923
The breakup for the retakaful and takaful contract assets and liabilities is given below:
Less than 1 1-5 More than
year years 5 years Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED000 AED’000
31 December 2024
Retakaful contract assets 33,433 10,807 - 44,240
Takaful contract liabilities 355,965 135,357 174,204 665,526
Retakaful contract liabilities 2,522 1,433 1,178 5,133
358,487 136,790 175,382 670,659
Less than 1 1-5 More than 5
yeatr years yeats Total
AED’000 AED000 AED’000 AED’000
31 December 2023
Retakaful contract assets 27,985 5,715 - 33,700
Takaful contract liabilities 245,068 125,702 165,473 536,243
Retakaful contract liabilities 1,804 774 875 3,453
246,872 126,476 166,348 539,696
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27 Risk management (continued)

Financial risk (continued)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fait value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in matket prices (other than those arising from profit rate risk or currency tisk), whether

those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument o its issuer, ot factors
affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The price risk is managed by outsourcing the trading of securities held by the Group to professional brokers.
However, the activities of brokers are also monitored and supetvised by the management.

The following table shows the sensitivity of fair values to 5% increase or decrease as at 31 December:

Favorable Unfavorable
change change
AED’000 AED’000

2024

Profit bearing assets 20,153 (20,153)
2023

Profit bearing assets 17,401 (17,401)

28 Corporate tax

On December 9, 2022, the United Arab Emirates (UAE) Ministry of Finance (MoF) released Federal
Decree Law No 47 of 2022 on the Taxation of Corporations and Businesses, Cotpotate Tax Law (CT Law)
to enact a new CT regime in the UAE. The new CT regime has become effective for accounting petiods
beginning on or after 1 June 2023, As the Group’s accounting yeat ends on 31 December, the fitst tax
period is from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024, with the respective tax return to be filed on or before

30 September 2025.

The taxable income of the entities that are in scope for UAE CT purposes will be subject to the rate of 9%

on taxable profits above AED 375,000. The tax chatge for the year ended 31 December 2024 is AED 2
million.

2024 2023

AED’000 AED’000

Statement of comprehensive income

Cutrent tax - -
Deferred tax 1,996 -
Income tax expense 1,996 -

Following is the analysis of deferred tax asset/(liabilities) presented in the consolidated financial statement of
financial position.
2024 2023
AED’000 AED’000
Statement of financial position

Deferred tax assets 991 -
Deferred tax liabilities (2,987) -
Net deferred tax liabilities (1,996) s
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28 Corporate tax (continued)

Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit:

2024 2023
AED’000 AED’000

Deferred tax asset:

Annual taxable income (11,007) .
Taxation at 9% (991) -
Deferred tax liability:
Unrealised gain/loss subject to defetred tax 33,189 -
Taxation at 9% 2,987 -
29 Internal sharia supervisory committee

The Group’s business activities are subject to the supetvision and control of its Internal Sharia Supervision
Committee (ISSC) consisting of three members appointed by the shareholders. ISSC petforms a
supetvisoty and monitoting role in otder to determine whether the operations of the Group are conducted
in accordance with Sharia rules and principles.

Accotding to the Intetnal Sharia Supervision Committee, the Gtoup is requited to identify any income
deemed to be derived from transactions not acceptable under Islamic Shatia rules and principles, as
interpreted by Internal Shatia Supervision Committee, and to set aside such amount in a separate account
for Shareholders who may resolve to pay the same for local charitable causes and activities.

30 Zakat

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024, the company is not liable for zakat, as the zakat value per
shate was AED 0.0081, due to the company’s outstanding debts. The same applies to zakat for the year
2023.

31 Subsequent events

No adjusting ot significant non-adjusting events have occurred between the reporting date and the date of
authorisation of these consolidated financial statements.
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Corporate Governance Report 2024

1.

Statement of procedures taken to complete the Corporate Governance system,
during 2024, and method of implementation thereof:

The Board of Directors of Takaful Emarat Insurance PSC, in cooperation with the Audit
Committee, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board, the External
Auditor of the Company and the Compliance and Internal Audit Departments, have
applied the rules of the corporate governance and standards of corporate discipline
under Federal Decree Law 32 of 2021 concerning the Commercial Companies and the
decision of the Securities and Commodities Authority’s Chairman of the Board of
Directors No. (3) of 2020 regarding the Standards of Institutional Discipline and
Corporate Governance guide which was issued subsequently, in order to find an
integrated system of financial and non-financial control through which the Company's
management and control. In addition, the Central Bank of United Arab Emirates
(CBUAE) also issued Circular 24 of 2022 dated 29 September 2022 on Corporate
Governance for Insurance Companies.

The Board has also reviewed and approved various internal policies during the year. The Board
of Directors encouraged the Company's team to participate in the training programs and
workshops organized by the regulatory. bodies such as the Securities & Commodities
Authority (SCA), the Dubai Financial Market (DFM) and Central Bank of the United Arab
Emirates (CBUAE), in order to raise the level of compliance and transparency by protecting
the rights of shareholders.

The Management has committed itself to providing the Board of Directors and its committees
with sufficient information in a timely and complete manner to enable it to make decisions on
the basis of proper performance of its duties and responsibilities. The Board of Directors was
provided all the information that enables it to take its decisions on a sound basis.

The Company's management presents the business updates to the Board at its regular
meetings to take the appropriate decisions. The Company is committed to implementing the
SCA Decision (3) for the year 2020 regarding Corporate Governance Guide in addition to the
laws and legislation in force in the United Arab Emirates.

Statement of ownership and transactions of Board members and their spouses,
their children in the Company securities during 2024, according to the following
schedule:

No. Name Position / | Owned shares as | Total Total
Relationship on 31/12/2024 sale purchase
1 Ms. Fatima | Ex-Chairperson  of | Nil Nil Nil
Hussain Al | the Board
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Ahmed

Mr. Mones
Naim El
Madani

Vice- Chairman

Nil

Nil

Nil

Mr. Omar
Saeed Al
Shaikh Al
Romaithi

Board Member

Nil

Nil

Nil

Mr. Saqgr Kamal
Hasni Hasan

Board Member

Nil

Nil

Nil

Mr. Nayef
Qassim Shahin
Abdulla

Board Member

Nil

Nil

Nil

Mr. Saeed
Mohammad
Rashed Al
Shard Al Falasi

Board Member

Nil

Nil

Nil

Mr. Majed
Awadh
Mohamed
Yafoor
AlHameli

Board Member

Nil

Nil

Nil

Mr.
Nooraldeen
Subhi Ahmed
Atatreh

Chairman

58,550

Nil

58,550

Mr. Hany Sabri

Board Member

Nil

Nil

Nil

Mr. Abdlaziz
Abdulatef

Board Member

Nil

Nil

Nil

3. Board Formation
A.Statement of the current Board formation (along with the names of both the
resigned and appointed Board members) according to the following schedule:

No. | Name Category Experiences Period Membership | Positions in
(executive, |and served as a | and any  other
non- Qualifications | goard positions at | important
executive, or member any  other | regulatory,
independent) from  the |joint- stock | government

date of first | companies or
election commercial
positions

1 Ms. Non- Master’s 09/05/2023 | NIL Chief People

Fatima Executive degree in |- Officer at
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University of
Ajman.
Expertise in
wealth
management,
Banking and
Finance

Hussain Independent | Business 13/08/2024 Dubai Holding

AliAhmed Administratio |*
n from the
University of
Dubai (United
Arab
Emirates) and
has
undergone
several
executive and
board level
programs that
include a
Leadership
Program from
Wharton
Business
School
(United
States).

2 Mr. Mones | Non- Bachelor in | 09/05/2023 | NIL NIL

Naim  El | Executive Law from | -

Madani Independent | University of | 22/10/2024
Jordan and |*
admitted to
the Jordan
Bar
Association,

CPA and a
member  of
the American
Institute  of
Certified

Public

Accountants.

3 Mr. Saqr | Non- Bachelors in | 09/05/2023 | NIL NIL

Kamal Executive Computer -

Hasni Independent | Information 22/11/2024

Hasan System from | *
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products.

4 Mr. Omar
Saeed Al
Shaikh Al
Romaithi

Non-
Executive
Independent

University of
Tampa with a
degree in
Management
Information
Systems
(MIS) and
holds a
certification
in Leadership
and
Management
from Harvard
Business
School.

09/05/2023

04/09/2024

*

NIL

NIL

5 Mr. Nayef
Qassim
Shahin
Abdulla

Non-
Executive
Independent

Executive
Masters
Business
Administratio
n, London
Business
School, UAE -
2017. Leader
in innovation,
transformatio
nal and
investment
strategies.

09/05/2023
- present

NIL

NIL

6 Mr. Saeed
Mohamma
d Rashed
Al Shard
AlFalasi

Non-
Executive
Independent

Bachelors in
Political
Science from
United Arab
Emirates
University.
Seasoned
adviser in the
domains  of
Accounting
and
Management
Restructuring.

09/05/2023

15/04/2024

*

NIL

NIL

7 Mr. Majed
Awadh
Mohamed
Yafoor
AlHameli

Non-
Executive
Independent

Expertise in
media
strategy and
public
relations. His

13/11/2023
- present

NIL

NIL
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academic
knowledge on
the
implementati
on of media
strategy and
public
relations has
earned him a
prominent
career in as
leader in
Public Affairs
and Media.

8 Mr. Non- Holds a Ph.D. | 14/08/2024 | NIL NIL
Nooraldee | Executive degree in | —present
n Independent | Pharmacy
Subhi from

Ahmed Manchester
Atatreh University,
UK, and
MSc in Drug
Chemistry
from
Newcastle
Upon  Tyne
University,
UK. He has
been working
in the
education
sector since
2011
responsible
for the
implementati
on of the
educational

institute’s
vision and
philosophy.
9 Mr. Hany | Non- Master’s 04/09/2024 | NIL NIL
Sabri Executive degree in

Independent | business

administratio
n (Banking &
Finance) from
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Preston
University in
20009.

Highly
accomplishe
d
professional
with 28 years
of progressive
experience in

financial
sector.
10 Mr. Non- Masters 22/10/2024 | NIL NIL
Abdlaziz Executive degree from |- present

Abdulatef |Independent | University of
Westminister
, UK in 2006.
Executive
consultant
with more
than 25 years
of
experience in
the private
and
governmental
sectors in
business
management.

* date of resignation / vacancy

B.Statement of the percentage of female representation in the Board for 2024:
The female representation in the Board is 14.28%.

C.Statement of the following:
1- The total bonuses paid to the Board members for 2023:
There was no remuneration paid to the Board members for the year 2023.

2- The total bonuses of the Board members, which are proposed for 2024, and will
be presented in the annual general assembly meeting for approval:
The Company will propose distribution of remuneration of the Board members to the
General Assembly in line with the limits prescribed by the governance principles.

3- Details of the allowances for attending sessions of the committees emanating
from the Board, which were received by the Board members for 2024 fiscal year:
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There were no allowances paid to Board members for attending session of
committees for 2024.

4- Details of the additional allowances, salaries or fees received by a Board member
other than the allowances for attending the committees and their reasons:
There were no other allowances, salaries or fees paid to Board member for 2024.

A. Number of the Board meetings held during 2024 fiscal year along with their
convention dates, personal attendance times of all members, and members
attending by proxy:

Ser. Date of meeting Number of | Number of | Names of absent
attendees attendees by | members
proxy

1 10/01/2024 Six Members None 1. Mr. Saeed
Mohmmad
Rashed
Alshared
Alfalasi

2 05/04/2024 Five Members 1 1. Mr. Saeed
Mohmmad
Rashed
Alshared
Alfalasi

3 15/05/2024 Five Members 1 NIL

4 04/09/2024 Four Members None 1. Mr. Majed
Awadh
Mohamed
Yafoor
Alhameli

5 15/10/2024 Five Members None 1. Mr. Majed
Awadh
Mohamed
Yafoor
Alhameli

2. Mr. Hany Sabri

6 22/10/2024 Four Members None 1. Mr. Mones
Naim El
Madani

2. Mr. Hany Sabri

7 13/11/2024 Four Members None 1. Mr. Majed
Awadh
Mohamed
Yafoor
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Alhameli
2. Mr.Hany Sabri

B. Number of the decisions passed during the 2024 fiscal year indicating their
dates:

Number of decisions by passing Date

1 13 August 2024

4. Committees of the Board of Directors
Audit Committee

A.The Audit Committee Chairman's acknowledgment of his responsibility for the
Committee system at the Company, review of its work mechanism and ensuring
its effectiveness:

Mr. Saqr Kamal Hasni Hasan, Audit Committee Chairman, acknowledges his
responsibility for the committee system in the Company, review of its work
mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness.

B.Names of the Audit Committee members and a statement of their powers and
tasks:

Following members represented the Audit Committee during 2024:

Mr. Sagr Kamal Hasni Hasan — Chairman
Mr. Saeed Mohammad Rashed Al Falasi
Mr. Nayef Qassim Shahin Abdulla

Mr. Khaled Owaidat - External Consultant

Tasks assigned to Audit Committee:

1. Review Company’s financial and accounting policies and procedures.

2. It shall oversee the integrity of and review the Company’s financial statements and
annual, semiannual, and quarterly reports in the course of its operations during the year
and shall, in particular, focus on:

i) Any changes of accounting policies and practices
i) Highlighting matters that are subject to the management's judgment.

iii) Material amendments emerging out of auditing.
iv) Assumption of the Company’s going concern
V) Adherence to the accounting criteria set by the Authority, and

Vi) Adherence to listing and disclosure rules as well as other financial reporting
legal requirements
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3.

10.

11

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

It shall coordinate with the board of directors, the executive management and the
financial manager or the manager assuming the same duties in the company in order to
duly fulfill its duties. The Committee shall hold a meeting with the company's external
auditor at least once per annum.

It shall consider any outstanding unconventional issues that are or have to be reflected in
these reports and accounts and shall pay necessary attention to any issues raised by the
financial manager of the Company, the manager assuming the same duties, the
compliance officer or the external auditor.

Submit recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding the selection, resignation, or
removal of the auditor. In the event that the Board of Directors does not agree with the
recommendations of the Audit Committee in this regard the Board of Directors must
include in the Corporate Governance Report an statement explaining the
recommendations of the Audit Committee and reasons that prompted the Board of
Directors not to adopt the recommendations.

Setting and implementing an external audit policy and recommending to the Board of
Directors by identifying the issues where actions are required to be taken.

Ensure that the auditors meet the requirements of laws and regulations and monitor their
independence.

Meet the auditors without the presence of company’s senior executive management once
in a year and discuss nature, scope and effectiveness of audit in accordance with the
international audit standards.

Discuss the work conducted by the auditor, communication with the Company,
observations, recommendations and inquiries raised by the auditor to the senior
management regarding accounting and internal control system and the management
response and follow-up.

Ensure that the management respond in timely manner to the issues raised in the audit
report.

. Review the Company's financial control, internal control and risk management systems.
12.

It shall discuss the internal control system with management and make sure that it fulfills
its duty to develop an effective internal control system.

It shall consider findings of main investigations into internal control issues to be assigned
to the management for corrective measures.

Review auditor’s evaluation of internal control procedures and ensure coordination
between internal and external auditor.

Ensure that necessary resources are available to internal control department and review
and monitor the effectiveness of the department.

Review internal audit reports and follow-up on the implementation of recommendations in
the report.

It shall develop rules that enable the employees of the Company to secretly report any
potential violations in financial reports, internal control or other issues and adequate
steps to conduct independent, fair investigations into these violations.

It shall oversee the scope of the Company's compliance with its code of conduct.

Review dealings with the related party and ensure there is no conflict of interest and
recommend those to the Board of Directors before concluding the transaction.

It shall ensure application of rules of operation in connection with their duties and powers
assigned thereto by the board of directors.

it shall make a report to the board of directors on the internal controlissues.
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22. It shall consider any other issues as the board of directors may determine.

C.Number of meetings held by the Audit Committee during 2024 and their dates to
discuss the matters related to financial statements and any other matters and

demonstrating the members' personal attendance times in the held meetings:

Name First Second Third Fourth Fifth Meeting
Meeting (MS | Meeting (MS | Meeting (MS Meeting* (MS Teams)
Teams) Teams) Teams) (MS Teams) 13/11/2024

05/04/2024 | 15/05/2024 | 13/08/2024 | 13/11/2024

Mr. Saeed - N/A N/A N/A N/A

Mohammad

Rashed Al Shard

Al Falasi—

Chairman

Mr. Nayef v v v v v

Qassim Shahin

Abdulla

Mr. Sagr Kamal v v v v v

Hasni Hasan

Mr. Khaled - v - - -

Owaidat -

External

Consultant

*Fourth meeting with External Auditors only

D.Annual Audit Committee Report

» The Committee reviewed the annual and interim financial statements in the Committee
meetings during 2024 and provided its recommendation to the Board on approval of the
financial statements. The Committee also discussed the significant matters raised by
the External auditors during the periodic Committee meetings.

» To ensure independence and effectiveness of External Audit, the Committee was
provided with the declaration from External auditors on quarterly basis regarding their

independence.

» Regarding the appointment of External Auditor, the Committee was provided three
proposals from the top External Audit firms at the beginning of the financial year. The
Committee recommended the appointment to the Board and the General Assembly
appoints the External Auditor based on the independence and experience of the
External Audit firm in the industry as per the recommendation of the Board of Directors.
There were no instances where Board of Directors rejected the recommendation of the
Audit Committee on the appointment of External Auditor.
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» For non-audit services from same external audit firm, the Audit Committee in
coordination with executive management ensured that there is no conflict of interest
between the scope of the audit of the financial statements and the scope of non-audit
services. The Company has the policy on appointment of External Auditors which was
recommended by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board. In addition, the
Company obtains declaration from External Auditors to confirm their independence
before each engagement.

» The External Auditors report in their quarterly meeting with the Audit Committee if they
have noted any material deficiencies or failures in internal control system. The Audit
Committee conducted separate meeting with the External Auditor without the presence
of the executive management of the Company. In case of any weaknesses identified by
the External Auditors, the Audit Committee discussed the same with the management
and instructed to take required action. During 2024, the Audit Committee
recommended to update the key policies and procedures of the Company by engaging
an expert and independent third party.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

A.The Nomination and Remuneration Committee Chairman's acknowledgment of his
responsibility for the Committee system at the Company, his review of its work
mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness:

Mr. Omar Saeed Al Shaikh Al Romaithi, Nomination and Remuneration Committee Chairman,
acknowledges his responsibility for the committee system in the Company, his review of its
work mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness.

B.Names of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee members and clarifying
their competences and tasks assigned to them:

Mr. Mr. Omar Saeed Al Shaikh Al Romaithi — Chairman

Mr. Mones El Madani

Mr. Nayef Qassim Shahin Abdulla

Mr. Sagr Kamal Hasni Hasan - From 21/10/2024

Mr. Majed Awadh Mohamed Yafoor AlHameli — From 21/10/2024

Tasks assigned to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee:
1. Setting policy for candidate for membership for Board of Directors and executive

management taking into account diversification in the gender, encouraging women
participation by providing incentives, training and programs and provide to Authority the copy
of the policy and any amendments.

2. Organization and follow-up of procedures of nomination to the membership of the board of
directors in line with applicable laws and regulations as well as this Resolution.

3. Verification of ongoing independence of independent board members.

4. Formulation and annual review of the policy on granting remunerations, benefits, incentives
and salaries to board members and employees of the Company and the committee shall
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verify that remunerations and benefits granted to the senior executive management of the
Company are reasonable and in line with the Company's performance.
5. Annual review of required skills for the membership of the Board of Directors and preparing
competencies and qualifications required for the membership of the Board including
specifying the time a member needs to allocate to work for the Board.
6. Review the structure of Board of Directors and make recommendations if any changes are

required.

7. Determination of the Company's needs for qualified staff at the level of senior executive
management and employees and the basis of their selection.
8. Formulation, supervision of application and annual review of the Company's human
resources and training policy; and
9. Handle any other matters specified by the Board of Directors.

C.Statement of number of meetings held by the Committee during 2024 and their
dates, and statement of all Committee members' personal attendance of times:

AlHameli

Mohamed Yafoor

b First Meeting Second Meeting Third Meeting
17/04/2024 (MS 06/05/2024 (MS 24/10/2024
Teams) Teams)

Mr. Omar Saeed v v -
AlRomaithi
Mr.  Mones v - -
Madani
Mr. Nayef Qassim v v 7
Shahin Abdulla
Mr. Saqr Kamal - - v
Hasni Hasan
Mr. Majed Awadh - _ v

Committee for monitoring and supervising transactions of stakeholders

Acknowledgment by the Committee Chairman or the authorized person of his
responsibility for the Committee system at the Company, review of its work
mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness:
Mr. Ahmed Aboutaleb, the Chairman of the Committee, acknowledges his responsibility
for the committee system in the Company, his review of its work mechanism and ensuring

its effectiveness.
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The role for the follow-up and supervision system on transactions of the insiders in the
Company, was performed by the Company’s Investor Relations Department.

Names of the Committee Members
Mr. Ahmed Aboutaleb — Chairman
Mr. Gafar Ali

Mr. Salman Qureshi

A summary of the work during 2024:

e Review of Insider Register and updates

e Review of Insider Trading Policy and Procedures

e Employees training on the Insider Trading Policy & Procedures

e Review of the trading reports and periodic reports submitted to SCA/DFM on the insiders list

Statement of number of meetings held by the Committee during 2024 and their
dates, and all Committee members' personal attendance times:

There was one meeting held by the Committee on 11/12/2024 attended by all
members.

Any other commiittee (s) approved by the Board

Investment Committee

A.The Committee Chairperson acknowledgment of his responsibility for the
Committee system at the Company, review of its work mechanism and ensuring
its effectiveness:

Mr. Mones El Madani, the Investment Committee Chairperson, acknowledges
responsibility for the committee system in the Company, review of its work
mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness.

Names of each committee members, clarifying its competences and tasks
assigned thereto:

Mr. Mones El Madani - Chairman

Mr. Saqr Kamal Hasni Hasan

Mr. Majed Awadh Mohamed Yafoor AlHameli
Mr. Zafar Khan — Advisor to the Committee

Role of the Investment Committee:
o Develop investment strategy for the approval of the Board of Directors

e Setting the investment guidelines
e Reviewing / monitoring the investments
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In conjunction with the Audit Committee, determining the scope of the rigorous audit
procedures that include full coverage of the investment activities to ensure timely
identification of internal control weaknesses and operating system deficiencies.

Assisting the Board of Directors in its evaluation of the adequacy and efficiency of the
investment policies, procedures, practices and controls applied in the day-today
management of its business through an audit report (either independent internal or

external) thatis to be submitted to the Audit Committee.

B.Statement of number of meetings held by the Committee during 2024 and their

dates, and all Committee members' personal attendance times:

There were no meetings held by the Committee during 2024.

Risk Management Committee

Names of each committee members, clarifying its competences and tasks
assigned thereto:

Mr. Saeed Mohammad Rashed Al Shard Al Falasi

Mr. Sagr Kamal Hasni Hasan

Mr. Omar Saeed Al Shaikh Al Romaithi

Mr. Mones El Madani-From 15/10/2024

Mr. Nayef Qassim Shahin Abdulla - From 13/11/2024

Mr. Majed Awadh Mohamed Yafoor AlHameli — From 13/11/2024

Role of the Risk Committee:

Help to set the tone and develop risk management program.

Create awareness such that people at all levels own and manage risks related to
their areas

Monitor the organization’s risk profile - its on-going and potential exposure to risks
of various types

Approve the risk management policy and plan. The risk management plan should
include the company’s risk management approach refers to tolerances, intervals,
frequency etc.

Discuss with the CEO and management the company’s major risk exposures and
review the steps management has taken to monitor and control such exposures.
Perform any other activities that the board or risk committee determines are necessary.

Statement of number of meetings held by the Committee during 2024 and their
dates, and all Committee members' personal attendance times:

There was one meeting held by the Committee on 25/12/2024 attended by:
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e Mr. Nayef Qassim Shahin Abdulla
e Mr. Majed Awadh Mohamed Yafoor AlHameli

In addition, the Company also have Internal Shariah Supervision Committee (ISSC). The
ISSC met three times during 2024. The ISSC also issued Annual Shariah Report for the
year 2024 on the compliance with Shariah rules.

Statement of Board duties and powers exercised by Board members or the
executive management members during 2024 based on an authorization from the
Board, specifying the duration and validity of the authorization according to the
following schedule:

#

Name of the authorized
person

Delegation authority

Duration of Delegation

Mr. Mohd Amin Abu Quora -
Chief Executive Officer

The Board delegated
following authority:

e Conducting day to
day commercial
and internal affairs
of the company

e Representing the
company in front
the government
departments,
ministries.

e Representing the
company and
signing agreements
inside and outside
the country

e Representing the
company in front of
the courts and
arbitration boards

From  05/04/2024
26/11/2024

to

Mr. Mohd Amin Abu Quora -
Chief Executive Officer
jointly with a Board member

The Board delegated
following authority:

e Open, close,
operate bank
account

e Add/delete bank
signatories

e Obtain credit
facilities

e Sale/purchase of
investments

From  05/04/2024
26/11/2024

to
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e Notify Board in next
Board meeting.

Mr. Mones El Madani - Vice
Chairman of the Board of
Directors

The Board delegated
following authority:

e Conducting day to
day commercial
and internal affairs
of the company

e Representing the
company in front of
the government
departments,
ministries.

e Representing the
company and
signing agreements
inside and outside
the country

e Representing the
company in front of
courts and
arbitration boards

e Open, close,
operate bank
account

e Add/delete
signatories

e Obtain
facilities

e Sale/purchase of
investments

e Notify Board in next
Board meeting.

bank

credit

From 01/01/2024 to
01/06/2024

Dr. Nooraldeen
Subhi Ahmed Atatreh

The Board delegated

following authority:

e Representing the
company in front
the government
departments,
ministries

e Representing the
company and
signing agreements
inside and outside
the country

Ongoing from 04/11/2024
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e Representing the
company in front
courts and
arbitration boards

e Open, close,
operate bank
account

e Add/delete  bank
signatories

e Obtain credit
facilities

e Sale/purchase of
investments

Statement of the details of transactions made with the related parties
(Stakeholders) during 2024:

As per the Chairman of the SCA Board of Directors’ Decision (3 RM) of 2020 on Joint
Stock Companies Governance Guide applicable for the year 2024, the Company was
not a party to any related party transaction during the year 2024.

5. Assessment of the Board of Directors
The annual assessment of the performance of the Board of Directors and its committees were
conducted by the Chairman of the Nomination & Remuneration committee in coordination with

the Board Secretary and Chairperson of the Board in July 2024.

Each Board member was selected and evaluated in terms of education, experience, skills,
duties, ethics, availability, participation, compatibility and judgement.

The Executive management KPIs were also reviewed by the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee in April 2024 to ensure its alignment with the corporate KPIs.

6. Organization Structure and Executive Management

The complete organizational structure of the company to show the positions of
Managing Director, General Manager, CEO, Deputy General Manager and other
directors working in the Company such as the Financial Director:
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A detailed statement of the senior executives in the first and second grade
according to the Company organizational structure, their jobs and dates of their
appointment, along with a statement of the total salaries and bonuses paid to them,
according to the following schedule:

Total
Salaries
Date of | and Total Bonuses paid | Any other Cash/in-
Position Appointme | Allowance | for 2024 kind Bonuses for
nt s paid in 2024 or Due in the
2024 (AED) future (AED)
(AED)
Chief Executive
Officer* 18/01/2024 930,821.92 Nil Nil
Chief Operating 16/12/2010 Nil Nil
Officer 587,256.75 | '
Director Finance 28/08/2016 | 533,000.00 | Nil Nil

*Resigned on: 27-11-2024
**Resigned on: 30-09-2024

o The Company follows a pay package with a split compensation and benefit system.
Remuneration shall be divided into basic pay and other allowances (housing,
transportation etc.).

o The Company has a formal grading structure. The title indicates the grade and the
level of seniority within the Company.
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7. External Auditor:
A. Submit an overview of the Company auditor to shareholders.

Grant Thornton is a multinational professional services company and one of the leading
service provider in UAE which provide audit, tax and advisory services to privately held
businesses, public interest entities, regulators and private sector entities. It has over 700
specialists across offices in Abu Dhabi, Dubai and Sharjah.

B. Statement of fees and costs for the audit or services provided by the external
auditor, according to the following schedule:

Name of the audit firm Grant Thornton
Name of the partner auditor - Mr. Darren Yule
Number of years served as the Company external Two years
auditor

Number of years partner auditor served auditing Two years

the Company accounts

Total audit fees for 2024 AED 546,000
Fees and costs of other special services provided | No other services provided by
by the Company’s auditor. In case of absence of the Grant Thornton.
any other fees, this shall be expressly stated.

The fees and cost of the other services other than N/A

auditing the financial statements for 2024. If
there are no other services, this matter shall be
stated expressly.

Statement of other services that an external AED 36,750

auditor other than the company accounts auditor | (Agreed Upon Procedures on Capital
provided during 2024 (if any). In the absence of Restructuring)

another external auditor, this matter is explicitly

stated.

C. Statement clarifying the reservations that the Company auditor included in the
interim and annual financial statements for 2024:
The auditor reported on accumulated losses in the interim financial statements however
issued an unqualified opinion in the financial statements for the year ended 31st
December 2024.

8. Internal Control System:

A. Acknowledgment by the Board of its responsibility for the Company’s internal
control system, review of its work mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness:

The Board of Directors of the Company acknowledges its responsibility for the Internal

Control System in the Company and its review of the functioning mechanism of
internal control and ensuring its effectiveness. The Board also reviews the system to
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ensure that the Company and its employees are fully compliant with the provisions of
the laws, regulations and decisions in force. The Board of Directors responsibilities
further include the monitoring of internal policies, procedures and reviewing the
financial data presented by the Company’s Senior Management which is used in the
preparation of Financial Statements.

B.Name of the department director, his qualifications and date of appointment:

Name: Mr. Bassem Alkhouly

Date of appointment: 16/12/2024

Qualifications and educational background: Diploma in Internal Control / Certified
Fraud Examiner

Experience: 20+ years

The contract with the previous internal audit firm (Limitless Consulting) expired in
2023 however some reports were issued in 2024 to complete the scope of work.

C.Name of compliance officer, his qualifications and date of appointment:

Name: Mr. Salman Qureshi - Senior Compliance Manager

Date of Appointment: 14/11/2023

Qualifications and educational background: Associate Cost and Management
Accountant

Experience: 22+ years

D.How the Internal Control Department dealt with any major problems at the
Company or those that were disclosed in the annual reports and accounts:

No major issues were reported in the audit reports issued in 2024 by the internal audit firm.
Observations were discussed with management, and an agreed action plan with a

rectification timeline was established.

E. Number of reports issued by the Internal Control Department to the Company's
Board of Directors:

There were Four reports issued in 2024 by the internal audit firm.

9. Details of the violations committed during 2024 with explanation of their causes,
how to address them and avoid recurrence in future:

There was a delay in submission of financial report. The Company took the corrective
measures by streamlining the reporting process.

10.Statement of the cash and in-kind contributions made by the Company during
2024 in developing the local community and preserving the environment:
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e The Company started transitioning its cloud infrastructure to a vendor that operates
entirely on renewable energy. This strategic move aligned with the Company’s
commitment to reducing its carbon footprint while ensuring operational efficiency and
scalability.

e During 2024, the Company also focused on using digital tools to go paperless as much as
possible.

e Energy saving methods are used in the lighting of offices and workplaces.

e The Company's social media provided awareness related to fitness and health.

11. General Information:

A. Statement of the Company share price in the market (closing price, highest
price, and lowest price) at the end of each month during the fiscal year 2024:

Month Highest Price | Lowest Price | Closing Price | DFM Index Financial
Index

Jan 0.87 0.59 0.74 4,169.10 3,088.10
Feb 1.72 1.07 1.47 4,308.77 3,177.60
Mar 1.60 1.48 1.52 4,246.27 2,996.05
Apr 1.54 1.45 1.57 4,148.84 2,904.35
May 1.57 1.49 1.50 3,977.93 2,806.35
Jun 1.63 1.46 1.51 4,030.00 2,892.00
Jul 1.57 1.48 1.50 4,268.05 3,123.50
Aug 1.52 1.37 1.48 4,325.45 3,170.4
Sep 1.49 1.36 1.37 4,503.48 3,285.30
Oct 1.38 1.18 1.35 4,591.05 3,278.15
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Nov 2.34 1.55 1.76 4,847.34 3,381.65

Dec 2.21 1.33 5,158.67 3,478.95

B. Statement of the Company comparative performance with the general market

index and sector index to which the Company belongs during 2024:
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C. Statement of the shareholders ownership distribution as on 31/12/2024
(individuals, companies, governments) classified as follows: local, Arab and

foreign:
Ser. Shareholders Percentage of owned shares
classification
Individuals Companies | Government | Total
1 Local 23.71% 10.98% - 34.69 %
2 Arab 21.03% 0.02% - 21.05%
3 Foreign 15.01% 29.25 - 44.26 %
Total 59.75% 40.25% - 100%
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D. Statement of shareholders owning 5% or more of the Company's capital as on
31/12/2024 according to the following schedule:

Ser. Name Number of owned | Percentage of owned shares
shares of the company’s capital
1 Sky Bridge Plus Project | 40,000,000 18.99%
Management LLC
2 BHM Capital Financial Services | 18,261,322 8.67%
PSC

E. Statement of how shareholders are distributed according to
ownership as on 31/12/2024 according to the following schedule:

the volume of

Ser. | Share (s) ownership | Number of | Number of owned | Percentage of
shareholders shares owned shares of the
capital
1 Less than 50,000 5,021 6,226,381 2.93%
2 From 50,000 to less | 196 34,293,166 16.28%
than 500,000
3 From 500,000 to less | 50 75,032,609 35.62%
than 5,000,000
4 More than 5,000,000 | 4 95,099,844 45.17%
F. Statement of measures taken regarding the controls of investor relationships and

Pag

an indication of the following:

A special page has been created on the Company’s website. The Company
website has been updated with the information and data disclosed by the
Company such as shareholder rights, governance reports, financial statements,
ownership structure and percentage and contact information of investor
relationship officer.

Name: Mr. Salman Qureshi
Email: investor.relations@takafulemarat.com

Phone: +97142309346
Fax: +97142309333
Website: https://takafulemarat.com/investors-information/
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G. Statement of the special decisions presented in the General assembly held during
2024 and the procedures taken in their regard:

The General Assembly Meetings of the Company held in February 2024 and June 2024
and special resolutions were passed on the restructuring of the Company’s capital and
to increase the capital.
H. Rapporteur of the Board meetings and the date of appointment:
Ms. Rayan Omer handled the responsibilities of Board Secretary till 02 August 2024.

Mr. Salman Qureshi took over the Board Secretary role since August 2024.

The Board Secretary handled all the Board Meetings’ arrangements including notices
and disclosures, documentation of presentations and minutes of meetings.

I. Detailed statement of major events and important disclosures that the Company
encountered during 2024:

e InFebruary 2024, the Company announced the Capital Restructuring.

e In December 2024 the Company announced the successful completion of Capital
Increase to AED 210,652,000.

J. Statement of the deals that the Company made with related parties during 2024
which are equal to 5% or more of the Company’s capital.

There were no transactions made of 5% or more of the Company’s capital in 2024 with
related parties.

K. Statement of Emiratisation percentage in the Company at the end of 2022, 2023
and 2024 (workers are excluded for Companies working in the field of contracting):

e The Emiratisation percentage in the Company at the end of 2022 is 8.4%
e The Emiratisation percentage in the Company at the end of 2023 is 13.8%
e The Emiratisation percentage in the Company at the end of 2024 is 17.3%

L. Statement of innovative projects and initiatives carried out by the Company or
being developed during 2024:

The Company has arranged Wellness campaign for customers to provide awareness on
lifestyle and chronic conditions.

In 2024 the Company has also arranged vaccination programs for the customers.
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In addition, there were different trainings conducted with the business partners related to
medical business and compliance.
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About Takaful Emarat (TE)

Our History

Takaful Emarat Insurance PSC, established in 2008, is a prominent Shariah
compliant Life and Health Takaful Provider in the UAE. Via a numbers of
distribution channels, Takaful Emarat sells a wide selection of individual &
corporate life and health Takaful products, including protection, savings, and
investment plans.

Our Objective

To advocate for the idea of takaful as a true insurance replacement that
complies with shariah. to develop and market Takaful goods based on
contemporary thinking and emerging demands. to maximize profits for both
participants and stockholders. to take Takaful Emarat international and
regional.

Our Mission

To manage participants financial security with full compliance of Shariah. To
gain trust and confidence by providing value added products and services
backed by international expertise. To act fairly and transparently in the best
interest of participants.

Our Vision

To become an international leader of Takaful Insurance in GCC, Middle East,
North Africa and other Islamic countries.
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Sustainability @TakafulEmarat

CEO Message

Mr. Adnan Sabaalaish, acting CEO of Takaful Emarat:

“Earlier this year, Takaful Emarat’s Board of Directors undertook decisive
measures to write off accumulated losses, laying a strong foundation for
sustainable growth. This achievement signals operational improvements,
transparency, and a strong commitment to delivering exceptional value to
shareholders and customers.

| also congratulate our leadership team, and all employees and partners on
this success."

With the increase of capital, the management team is fully dedicated to
exceeding the expectations of investors, stakeholders, and customers. The
positive impact of these strategic initiatives will be reflected in upcoming
financial reports, highlighting the Company’s improved performance and
strengthened market position.
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Approach

Takaful Emarat aims to promote the concept of Takaful as a true alternative
to conventional insurance, ensuring that all products align with Shariah
principles.

The Company is dedicated to innovating and tailoring its offerings to meet
both contemporary needs and emerging market demands. This approach
ensures that both participants and shareholders benefit, with the objective
of expanding Takaful Emarat's reach both internationally and regionally,
further strengthening its position in the Takaful insurance industry.

e Takaful vs Conventional Insurance:

In Arabic, Takaful means ‘solidarity and cooperation among group of
people’. Takaful insurance is a form of co-operative insurance in compliance
with Islamic Shariah, which is based on the concept of shared contributions
and mutual co-operation between the participants to compensate one
another in case of loss.

e Takaful mechanism:

Participants make voluntary contributions to a shared Takaful fund, which
protects each member against combined risks and distributes surpluses
equally. With no prior expectations of fixed returns, the Company will
manage and operate the Takaful fund on their behalf.
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2024 — Highlights

In 2024, Takaful Emarat proudly announces the successful completion of its
capital increase, achieving the targeted AED 185 million through a rights
issue offered to existing investors. This milestone increases the Company's
total capital to AED 210,652,000, reflecting the great trust and confidence
shareholders and the market have in the Company's management and
strategic direction.

Takaful Emarat extends heartfelt gratitude to the UAE government and its
visionary leadership. Their strategic policies and unwavering support have
fostered a thriving business environment, enabling the Company’s growth
and success. This achievement is a testament to the strength and stability
of the UAE's financial and economic ecosystem.
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Stakeholder Engagement

e Employees

Intranet, Newsletters, CEO Communications, Management Meetings,
Surveys, Team building & inhouse training events.

e Customers

Customer services & interaction via multiple platforms like Call, Website,
email, etc. Surveys & Feedbacks, Social media platforms & Google, TE
Digital Platform for Sales.

e Business Partners

Trainings & Workshops, Events, Service portals Personal contacts, Digital
Transformation Strategy Partners.

e Regulatory Authorities, Media, Society and others

Voluntary Participations, Interviews, Publications & Social Events Exchange
of ideas & communications with regulators, Projects & Surveys.

e Shareholders & Investors

Market Disclosures, General Assembly, Meeting, Personal Contacts by
Investor Relations, Corporate Notices.

e Industry

Networking Events / Conferences, Collaborations, Personal Contacts.
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Corporate Governance & Risk Management

The Board of Directors of Takaful Emarat Insurance in cooperation with the
Committees of the Board and the Compliance and Internal Audit
Departments, have applied the corporate governance standards in order to
have an integrated system of financial and non-financial control.

The Board of Directors encouraged the Company's team to participate in
the training programs and workshops organized by the regulatory. bodies
such as the Securities & Commodities Authority (SCA), the Dubai
Financial Market (DFM) and Central Bank of the United Arab Emirates
(CBUAE), in order to raise the level of compliance and transparency by
protecting the rights of shareholders.

The Management has committed itself to providing the Board of
Directors and its committees with sufficient information in a timely
and complete manner to enable it to make decisions on the basis of
proper performance of its duties and responsibilities.
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Corporate Governance & Risk Management

e Compliance & Ethical Business Practices

Takaful Emarat is committed to the highest Compliance & Ethical Business
Practices that promote integrity, accountability, and decision-making
mechanisms. Sound corporate governance and business ethics contribute
to the Company's ability to achieve its goals and provide value to
shareholders within an effective control framework. ESG strategy and
goals.

During 2024, there were trainings conducted for all employees on Code of
Conduct, Corporate Governance and Anti-Money Laundering & Targeted
Financial Sanctions policy of the Company. The Company also arranged
training session at industry level with the partnering insurance broker to
provide awareness on Anti-Money Laundering & Targeted Financial
Sanctions which was attended by large number of brokers. Subsequently,
there was training evaluation contest organized with the Employees and
the prizes were awarded to the winners of the contest to encourage the
participation.
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Sustainable Procurement & Goals

The Company’s objective is to ensure goods and services are procured in a
sustainable manner while Implementing cost-saving initiatives to reduce
financial impact of unbudgeted expenses and minimize environmental
impact. We aim to source locally whenever it is feasible, supporting and
contributing to the development of UAE economy. Investing in local suppliers
creates jobs, builds local capacity and supports a more stable business
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e Integration into Strategy
The Company believe in integrating the principles of sustainable operations
and strive to embed relevant ESG issues into our business strategy.

e Environmental Stewardship
At TE, we are committed to mitigating climate change, conserving natural
resources, and taking steps to reduce our carbon footprint each year.

e Corporate Governance & Responsible Business Practices

We believe in building sustainable relationship with our stakeholders. Acting
responsibly through our business value chain is of highest importance.
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Operational Excellence

Information Security & Data Privacy

TE continuously takes measures to mitigate the risks associated with data
management and security and ensures compliance with all applicable
information security requirements in line with regulations and best industry
practices.

Apart from implementing mature and robust security management systems,
TE also carries out annual IT audit via external consultant confirming to our
best IT security practices and advising on improvements. Our Business
Continuity & Disaster recovery design ensures adequate timely support to
our primary IT infrastructure covering untimely contingent events.

We Provide training to our employees regularly on cybersecurity
awareness programs. We have well defined security policies and
procedure which are audited regularly and updated.

In addition, periodic independent IT auditing is performed to identify major
risk and implement remediation actions.

Data privacy & information security :

v" We provide data privacy and information security awareness sessions
to employees.

v" Sending information security awareness emailers to employees.

v" Continuously performing cyber security risk assessment.

v" Vulnerability and phishing emails are detected by our state of art
systems and taking preventive measures by IT Team.

v" Implemented multi-tier security systems to prevent any breach and data
loss.

v" Cloud Infrastructure laaS and Cloud Platform Services PaaS support
latest applications and tools.

v' Update and test the data backup plan.
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Stakeholders Sustainability

Customer Engagement

One of the key measure for Takaful Emarat success is customer
satisfaction which helps us to improve our products and services to meet
their requirements. The Company continued to encourage customer
feedback via various channels including satisfaction surveys through call,
website, email, SMS, Social media channels and customer experience.
This enables us to measure our service levels and understand the root
causes for resolution and find distinctive ways to deliver value. Our
sustained customer loyalty and lasting growth comes by meeting evolving
customer expectations through delivering valued Shariah product &
services, easy to use & intuitive smart Digital platforms and ongoing
personalized insurance engagement through policy cycle.

v" Understanding and assessing customer insurance needs.

v" Delivering Value for our Corporate & Individual customers.

v" Guiding to make informed insurance decisions and risk mitigation both
Corporate & Individual.

v" Meeting customer expectations with tailored boutique insurance
solutions.

v" Keeping It Simple, Secure, and transparent through digital smart
platforms.

v' Being responsible to our customers’ requirements and improving our
services.

v" Encouraging our customers in fostering their corporate responsibility
goals.

v" Ongoing engagement through the policy cycle.
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Employee Engagement

Navigating the robust insurance industry landscape demands a high level
of proficiency, knowledge, and adaptability. We strive to create an equal
opportunity work environment that lays the foundation for a strong
corporate culture with professionally qualified individuals. Our commitment
to diversity, equality and inclusion is unwavering. We believe that a diverse
work culture enhances value creation and boosts employee engagement,
fostering a sense of ownership towards achieving corporate goals and
success.

Throughout the year, we organize various recreational activities to
celebrate the company's notable achievements, recognize top performers,
and facilitate team-building exercises, among other events. These activities
promote team spirit and create a positive, solution-oriented work
environment.

Transparency in policies and procedures is crucial for fostering trust and
accountability within an organization. We support clear communication on
employee privileges ensuring that all staff members are aware of their
entittements and protections. This includes understanding their rights
related to working hours, leave entitlements, and protection against
discrimination and harassment. Our employees understand the criteria for
promotions, appraisals, and salary adjustments, thus reducing perceptions
of bias and favoritism, leading to higher morale and job satisfaction. We
advocate maintaining a safe workplace for the physical and mental
wellbeing of our employees.

takaful
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Staff Strength

Our workforce is our greatest strength and the foundation of our business
success. We foster a corporate culture that encourages open
communication, where employees are invited to share their ideas and
constructive feedback to enhance engagement and well-being.

Our commitment to diversity and inclusiveness is inspired by operating in a
country with strong guiding principles on tolerance and inclusion. We
celebrate the diversity, experience, and harmony that our employees bring
to the company. With 144 employees from more than 17 different
nationalities, diversity is deeply embedded in Takaful Emarat's company
culture.

Category Female Male

Manager 3 29
Staff 56 56
Total 59 85

Our strategy is to increase the number of Emirati talent & the successful
integration of the national workforce to core insurance positions enabling
thus our people for a long-term career in the insurance sector. Our current

strength of UAEN employees stands at 17.32%.
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2024 Initiatives

Takaful Emirates has achieved a strong leap in the field of Emiratization for
the year 2024, as we achieved points exceeding the expected numbers in
one year.

*Summary as per the MoHRE system target year 2024

TAWTEEN percentage at the time of the resolution's issuance: 9.2%, the
achieved percentage end of 2024 is 17.32%.

« Summary as per the CBUAE system target year 2024

40 was the required target points to operational: The achieved points end
of 2024 79 points.

2 required target points to recruitment. The achieved end of 2024 is 2 UAE
National Employees.

End of 2024 Takaful Emarat have 20 trained and qualified Emiratis. Most of
them having an important and critical positions in the insurance sector such
as under health takaful, family takaful, finance. Emiratization, sales
advisers and compliance.

Dubai Office
UAE Nationals 20
Total 144
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Social Responsibility

Wellness Campaign for

Customers

The Company has arranged Wellness campaign for customers to
provide awareness on lifestyle and chronic conditions.

Vaccination Program for
Employees

In 2024 the Company has also arranged vaccination programs for the
employees.

Business Partner Trainings

In addition, there were different trainings conducted with the business
partners related to medical business and compliance.

takaful
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Employees Well being

TE cares for the employee's wellbeing and financial security, benefits
packages are designed to create value for the Company employees
including health plans, life and personal accident benefits.

TE encourages its employees to adopt healthy lifestyle. Amongst our other
employee programs, the Company also arranged and conduct regular
health checkups and wellness awareness sessions in association with
reputed medical service providers for all staff during the year including the
vaccination programs.

Training & Development

With the rapid adoption of technology, ongoing trainings become essential
for the users who leverage it to bring success. Our IT team actively
conducts awareness sessions on rising cyber security threats. Special
training programs are delivered in-house, meeting the requirements of
employees including mandatory sessions on Anti-Money Laundering,
Cyber security, Code of Conduct, and others. In-house trainings or
scheduled courses, workshops, others, is being encouraged for all
employees during the year, which adds to the department score in annual
appraisal process conducted through balance scorecard. Besides, inhouse
structured learning, we encourage UAE nationals to pursue the courses
offered by Emirates Insurance Federation focusing on development and
career progression in Takaful.
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Environmental Responsibility

Moving from the traditional Takaful operator, the Company realize that
climate change risk requires us to actively engage with entire value chain in
implementing preventive risk management and adaptive strategies. While
trying to reduce the environmental impact as far as possible, it is going to
be a good journey building socio-economic resilience and transitioning to
low-carbon economy together. Therefore, amongst others the Company
want to take part through planned investments, awareness, and trainings
(risk preparation and mitigation).

v" Favoring Eco-design — Eco design Buildings

v' Waste Management & Recycling — Smart Sanitary equipment, Sensor
Lights systems

v" Resource Efficiency - Paperless office

v" Reducing Carbon footprint

takaful
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